
Date Published:11 September 2017     

Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 20 September 2017 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Laura Powick

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 
2017.

Laura Powick

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or 
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda

Laura Powick

4  MOTION 772: HIGHWAY CUSTOMER SERVICE SATISFACTION 
SURVEY (Pages 5 - 54)

To update the Committee on the findings of the Highway Customer 
Service Satisfaction Survey. 

Scott 
Tompkins

5  COMMISSIONING DIRECTORS REPORT (Pages 55 - 90)

Nigel Riglar, Commissioning Director: Communities and 
Infrastructure to update the Committee on current issues. 

Nigel Riglar



    

6  CHIEF FIRE OFFICER REPORT (Pages 91 - 94)

The Committee to note a report from the Chief Fire Officer, detailing 
information on the portfolio of services provided by the 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service on behalf of 
Gloucestershire County Council.

Stewart Edgar

7  WORK PLAN (Pages 95 - 96)

To review the committee work plan and suggest items for 
consideration at future meetings (work plan attached). 

Chairman

8  FUTURE MEETINGS 

22 November 2017
17 January 2018
7 March 2018
9 May 2018
11 July 2018
19 September 2018
7 November 2018

Laura Powick

Membership –  Cllr Robert Bird (Chairman), Cllr Dr John Cordwell, Cllr Kevin Cromwell, 
Cllr Jeremy Hilton, Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Cllr Sajid Patel, Cllr Keith Rippington, Cllr Stephen Hirst 
and Cllr Rachel Smith 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
held on Wednesday 12 July 2017 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - 
Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Robert Bird 
(Chairman)
Cllr Dr John Cordwell
Cllr Kevin Cromwell
Cllr Jeremy Hilton

Cllr Patrick Molyneux
Cllr Sajid Patel
Cllr Keith Rippington
Cllr Rachel Smith

Substitutes: Cllr Shaun Parsons

Apologies: Cllr Stephen Hirst

19. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Cllr Stephen Hirst.

Cllr Shaun Parsons substituted at the meeting for Cllr Hirst.

20. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING - 14 JUNE 2017 

The minutes of the meeting held on 14 June 2017 were confirmed and signed as an 
accurate record of that meeting.

21. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made. 

22. AIR QUALITY MONITORING SCHOOLS PROJECT 

Philip Williams, Lead Commissioner: Community Infrastructure, introduced the Air 
Quality Monitoring Schools Project report to the Committee. Orlagh Stoner, LSTF 
Project Officer, was also in attendance at the meeting to answer any questions the 
Committee had about the report. 

The report detailed the results of the Air Quality Schools Pilot Project, which was 
commissioned following an amendment to the County Council budget for 2016/17 
to include £50,000 to carry out an independent study of air quality outside schools. 
The study involved a mobile air quality monitoring van measuring air pollutants 
outside 5 project schools and 2 additional schools in Cheltenham, and engagement 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

with the 5 project schools in relation to air quality awareness, active travel 
promotion, and healthy lifestyles. 

In response to a query, it was clarified that schools identified to take part in the 
project were based within or near Air Quality Management Areas and were willing 
to fully engage with the project.

The results of the snapshot study, which took place in February and March 2017, 
indicated that air pollution levels were higher outside schools at school drop-off 
times during term time, however, during half term, pollution levels were higher in the 
middle of the day. Members noted that the highest Nitrogen Dioxide reading was 
measured outside Leckhampton Primary School.

Members were informed that, moving forward, engagement with schools to promote 
awareness of air pollution should continue, opportunities to coordinate investment 
could be explored, and the national picture needed to be considered. The 
Committee noted that DEFRA will be reporting back on its air pollution consultation 
later this year.

Members discussed in depth the results of the Air Quality Schools Pilot Project and 
considered ways in which air pollution could be addressed within Gloucestershire.

It was proposed that a scrutiny task group be established to consider issues relating 
to air pollution. This was seconded, and the proposal for a task group was agreed 
by the Committee. Cllr Jeremy Hilton and Cllr Rob Bird were nominated to scope 
the one page strategy for the task group outside of the Committee meeting.

23. POLICING AND CRIME ACT 2017: EMERGENCY SERVICES COLLABORATION 

Stewart Edgar, Chief Fire Officer, provided the Committee with an update on the 
report commissioned by Gloucestershire County Council to understand the 
implications of proposals resulting from the Policing and Crime Act 2017.

It was explained that there were three provisions included in the Act which related 
to fire and rescue services, including the ability for the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (PCC) to take over the governance of fire and rescue services, 
where a business case supported such an approach and where the Home 
Secretary had agreed.

Members were informed that the legislation proposed several different governance 
model options for fire and rescue services, and the process for a decision on a shift 
of governance was explained to them. The Committee also noted the estimated 
costs associated with moving to a PCC governance model, and the initial 
conclusions detailed in the update report.

The Committee was informed that an initial options appraisal to inform any business 
case for a change of governance had been completed for the PCC in 
Gloucestershire by consultants, who had since been re-commissioned to make 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

progress to outline business case. The PCC in Gloucestershire had received public 
funding of £100k to support the development of the business case. 

In response to a query, it was highlighted that Essex County Fire and Rescue 
Service was expected to be the first fire and rescue service to move across to PCC 
governance, and that the move was amicable. In response to a further query, the 
different types of fire authorities was explained to the Committee. 

The Committee recognised that collaborative work between the emergency 
services in Gloucestershire already occurred, notably that GFRS and 
Gloucestershire Constabulary shared estates at Waterwells.

It was noted, in response to a query, that a period of consultation would follow the 
completion of the PCC’s outline business case, and that should a shift to PCC 
governance of GFRS  be agreed, it would likely not occur before 2019.

24. COMMISSIONING DIRECTORS REPORT 

Nigel Riglar, Commissioning Director: Communities and Infrastructure, updated the 
Committee on current issues. In particular, members noted that:

a) In an update on the highways contract, it would be business as usual with 
Amey over the next 18 months;

b) In relation to the additional funding of £100k for the 2017/18 TRO budget, 
which was agreed at full Council in February 2017, ways to make more 
permanent funding available were being considered;

c) The tender process for the Traffic Signal Maintenance Contract was currently 
underway, with the intention of awarding the new contract in July 2017;

d) Whilst there had been some noise in relation to commuter and resident 
parking, the Cheltenham West parking scheme had mostly gone well;

e) Phase one and two of the Cheltenham Transport Plan had been completed, 
that monitoring outputs from phase two were positive, and that the start of 
phase three was dependant on other construction work in the area;

f) A visit was due from the Road Minister, particularly in relation to the 
Elmbridge Court Roundabout Improvement Scheme and the A417 Missing 
Link;

g) In an update on the Joint Core Strategy, a joint position statement would 
hopefully be agreed with Highways England and presented to the 
examination Inspector;

h) Work was underway to understand the interrupted electrical supply to the 
Hempstead Household Recycling Centre; and

i) The first tranche of Growth Hub Tier 3 libraries would be live by September 
2017.

Clarification was sought regarding the £14.1m major tail-end funding, included in 
the initial £62.5m Growth Deal funding announced in July 2014, which had been 
reduced to £9.07m to be paid directly from the Department of Transport for the 
Elmbridge Roundabout Scheme. Clarification was also sought on the Strategic 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

Transport Modelling Access Protocol, and on progress with the Kemble car park 
TRO. 

In response to a query relating to the Capital Programme 2017/18, it was explained 
that liabilities were reviewed at monthly Capital Programme meetings and were 
discussed at Lead Cabinet Member meetings. There was also a query regarding 
the level of spending on cycling under the Capital Programme 2017/18.

It was noted that an update on the third river crossing would be brought to a future 
meeting.

25. CHIEF FIRE OFFICER REPORT 

Stewart Edgar presented the report, which detailed information on the portfolio of 
services provided by GFRS.

The Committee noted that, following the tragic Grenfell Tower fire in London on 
Wednesday 14 June 2017, all high and medium-rise premises in Gloucestershire 
had received a door to door reassurance visit and fire risk inspection. It was 
confirmed that two high reach towers could be mobilised in the case of a fire at a 
high rise building in the County. It was noted that revised advice from the 
Government regarding fire safety in high rise buildings was anticipated. 

There was also a discussion regarding access to schools in an emergency. 

26. WORK PLAN 

In addition to agreeing the proposal for a scrutiny task group on air pollution, the 
Committee requested to receive an update on Motion 772: Highways Customer 
Satisfaction Survey at the meeting on 20 September 2017, and a briefing on the 
Minerals Local Plan on 22 November 2017.

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 1.00 pm

Page 4



Highways Customer Satisfaction Survey Results
SUBJECT

Scrutiny Briefing
DATE September 2017
PURPOSE OF 
REPORT

To update the members of the Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
on the findings of the review of Highways Customer Satisfaction Surveys

Background
A Highways Customer Satisfaction surveys is sent out annually to all parishes, town councils and 
elected members every autumn. The results of the survey are used to help direct improvements in 
the service and are part of the key performance indicators within the highways term maintenance 
contract.  The 2016 survey was delayed following a motion at full council which asked scrutiny to 
review the survey.  Environment and Communities Scrutiny members considered the motion to Full 
Council on 29th June 2016 on Highways Satisfaction Levels and supported the proposal to 
commission a review of Highways Customer Satisfaction Surveys.  

Officers updated members in November 2016 and members agreed the recommended changes to 
the survey. The changes included rewording some of the questions, moving the survey to an ‘on-
line’ version, extending the survey to community groups in Gloucester and Cheltenham and offering 
a week’s lengthsmen time as a prize draw to encourage a better response rate.  Surveys were 
intended to be sent out in spring 2017 but were further delayed due to problems with developing the 
on-line version and then conflicts with the election purdah periods.  

Surveys were sent out in June 2017 with an end of July completion date.  A copy of the full results 
are attached to this report.

Responses
Despite offering a chance to win a week’s lengthsmen service, responses from parishes and town 
councils dropped compared to previous years.  The surveys were also circulated to community 
groups in Gloucester City and Cheltenham Borough for the first time but with very limited returns.  
Member response rates were also down but this could be attributed to a significant number of new 
members following the May election.

Response Rates June 2017 November 2015

Parish & Town Council 74 (28%) 107 (40%)

Community Groups 6 NA

Members 16 (30%) 23 (43%)

Highlights of results
In order to allow finer interpretation of the results and direct correlation to specific areas of the 
service a number of questions were changed which means that direct comparisons for some 
questions with previous year results are not possible.  However some of the key questions have 
remained consistent and allow for comparison data.

Key question:  Overall how would you rate Amey Highways Gloucestershire on the 
service(s) it has provided in your parish/town/community?
Parish/Town Council June 2017 November 2015
Very Good 7.04% 2.20%
Good 26.76% 15.38%
Average 30.99% 29.67%
Poor 23.94% 26.37%
Very Poor 11.27% 26.37%

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Community Groups June 2017 November 2015
Very Good 0.00% NA
Good 33.33%
Average 16.67%
Poor 33.33%
Very Poor 0.00%

Members June 2017 November 2015
Very Good 12.50% 4.76%
Good 18.75% 23.81%
Average 50.00% 42.86%
Poor 18.75% 19.05%
Very Poor 0.00% 9.52%

Key Question:  How satisfied were you with the professionalism of staff?
Members June 2017 November 2015

Very satisfied 12.50% 15.4%

Satisfied 43.75% 32.7%

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 25.00% 26.9%

Dissatisfied 6.25% 11.5%

Very dissatisfied 0.00% 13.5%

Key Question:  For Road Repairs: How was the quality of the completed work?
Member June 2017 November 2015
Very Good 6.25% 0%
Good 56.25% 55%
Average 12.50% 25%
Poor 25.00% 10%
Very Poor 0.00% 10%

Question 20:  For Lengthsmen: How was the quality of the completed work?
Parish

Very Good 5.63%
Good 19.72%
Average 12.68%
Poor 1.41%
Very Poor 0.00%

Member
Very Good 31.25%
Good 31.25%
Average 6.25%
Poor 12.50%
Very Poor 6.25%

Page 6



Conclusion
Across all of the surveys there has been a significant improvement in customer satisfaction 
compared to the 2015 results.  This is most evident in the reduced Poor or Very Poor response 
rates.  The recommendation would be to repeat the surveys in late autumn 2017 so that future year 
results are aligned with an autumn time table.  There may need to be some revisions to the 
questions in order to simplify the responses.  Officers will review the questions and prepare the on 
line surveys over the coming months.

AUTHOR Scott Tompkins: Lead Commissioner Highways Authority
scott.tompkins@gloucestershire.gov.uk 
01452 328525

Page 7

mailto:scott.tompkins@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Highways Customer Satisfaction Survey 
June/July 2017 survey 
 
Response Rates 

Parish & Town Council 74 (28%) 

Community Groups 6 

Members 16 (30%) 
 
 
Question 1 
How many times have you contacted Amey Highways Gloucestershire in the past 
year? 

Parish (71) 
 Never 5.63% 

1-5 times 29.58% 

6-9 times 22.54% 

10-19 times 15.49% 

20+ 23.94% 

[No Response] 2.82% 
 

Community Group (6) 

Never 66.67% 

1-5 times 16.67% 

6-9 times 16.67% 

10-19 times 0.00% 

20+ 0.00% 

[No Response] 0.00% 
 

Member (16) 
 Never 12.50% 

1-5 times 12.50% 

6-9 times 6.25% 

10-19 times 12.50% 

20+ 50.00% 

[No Response] 6.25% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



Question 2 
Which methods have you used to contact Amey Highways Gloucestershire? 
 
Parish (71) 

www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/reportit 50.70% 

By telephoning 08000 514 514 45.07% 

Email: GCCHighways@amey.co.uk 35.21% 

Email: GCCCouncillors@amey.co.uk 16.90% 

By letter 2.82% 

In person 11.27% 

Telephone or email direct to member of staff 47.89% 

Other 7.04% 

[No Response] 5.63% 

 
Community Group (6) 

www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/reportit 16.67% 

By telephoning 08000 514 514 16.67% 

Email: GCCHighways@amey.co.uk 33.33% 

By letter 0.00% 

In person 0.00% 

Telephone or email direct to member of staff 16.67% 

Other 0.00% 

[No Response] 50.00% 
 
Member (16) 

www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/reportit 25.00% 

By telephoning 08000 514 514 43.75% 

Email: GCCHighways@amey.co.uk 18.75% 

Email: GCCCouncillors@amey.co.uk 50.00% 

By letter 0.00% 

In person 25.00% 

Telephone or email direct to member of staff 56.25% 

[No Response] 12.50% 
 
 
Question 3a 
When telephoning 08000 514 514 how satisfied were you with the 
professionalism of staff 
 
Parish (71) 

Very satisfied 5.63% 

Satisfied 23.94% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 12.68% 

Dissatisfied 1.41% 

Very dissatisfied 1.41% 

Not used 0.00% 

Page 10



Don't know 0.00% 

[No Response] 54.93% 
 
Community Group (6) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 16.67% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don't know 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member (16) 
(Question related to all contacts, not just 0800 514514 calls) 

Very satisfied 12.50% 

Satisfied 43.75% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 25.00% 

Dissatisfied 6.25% 

Very dissatisfied 0.00% 

Don't know 0.00% 

[No Response] 12.50% 

 

 
Question 3b 
When telephoning 08000 514 514 how satisfied were you with the speed of 
response to your enquiry (ie, how quickly your phone call was answered) 
 

Parish (71) 

Very satisfied 5.63% 

Satisfied 25.35% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 7.04% 

Dissatisfied 5.63% 

Very dissatisfied 1.41% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don't know 0.00% 

[No Response] 54.93% 
 
Community Group (6) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 16.67% 

Not used 0.00% 

Page 11



Don't know 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member (16) 
(Question related to all contacts, not just 0800 514514 calls) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 37.50% 

Neither / Nor 31.25% 

Dissatisfied 12.50% 

Very dissatisfied 0.00% 

Don’t know 6.25% 

[No Response] 12.50% 
 
Question 3c 
When telephoning 08000 514 514, how satisfied were you with the sufficiency 
and clarity of information provided by staff about how/when your enquiry 
would be dealt with 
 
Parish (71) 

Very satisfied 4.23% 

Satisfied 19.72% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 12.68% 

Dissatisfied 4.23% 

Very dissatisfied 2.82% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don't know 0.00% 

[No Response] 56.34% 
 
Community Group (6) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 0.00% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don't know 16.67% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member (16) 
(Question related to all contacts, not just 0800 514514 calls) 

Very satisfied 6.25% 

Satisfied 25.00% 

Neither / Nor 25.00% 

Dissatisfied 31.25% 

Very dissatisfied 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

Page 12



[No Response] 12.50% 
 
 
Question 3d 
When telephoning 08000 514 514 How satisfied were you with how you were 
kept informed about the progress of your request 
 
Parish (71) 

Very satisfied 2.82% 

Satisfied 7.04% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 11.27% 

Dissatisfied 7.04% 

Very dissatisfied 11.27% 

Not used 1.41% 

Don't know 4.23% 

[No Response] 54.93% 
 
Community Group (6) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 16.67% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 0.00% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don't know 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
 
Member (16) 
(Question related to all contacts, not just 0800 514514 calls) 

Very satisfied 6.25% 

Satisfied 6.25% 

Neither / Nor 43.75% 

Dissatisfied 18.75% 

Very dissatisfied 12.50% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 12.50% 
 
 
Question 4a 
When telephoning direct to a member of staff: How satisfied were you with the 
professionalism of that person. 
 
Parish (71) 

Very satisfied 14.08% 

Satisfied 14.08% 

Page 13



Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 4.23% 

Dissatisfied 2.82% 

Very dissatisfied 1.41% 

Not used 7.04% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 56.34% 
 
Community Group (6) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 16.67% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member (16) 
No similar question 
 
 
Question 4b 
When telephoning direct to a member of staff: How satisfied were you with the speed 
of response (answering the phone). 
 
Parish (71) 

Very satisfied 9.86% 

Satisfied 11.27% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 5.63% 

Dissatisfied 5.63% 

Very dissatisfied 1.41% 

Not used 8.45% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 57.75% 
 
Community Group (6) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 16.67% 

Very dissatisfied 0.00% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
 

Page 14



Question 4c 
When telephoning direct to a member of staff: How satisfied were you with the 
sufficiency and clarity of information provided by staff about how/when your 
enquiry would be dealt with? 
 
Parish (71) 

Very satisfied 11.27% 

Satisfied 9.86% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 11.27% 

Dissatisfied 1.41% 

Very dissatisfied 2.82% 

Not used 7.04% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 56.34% 
 
Community Group (6) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 16.67% 

Very dissatisfied 0.00% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
 
Member (16) 
No equivalent question 
 
 
Question 4d 
When telephoning direct to a member of staff: How satisfied were you with how you 
were kept informed about the progress of your request? 
 
Parish (71) 

Very satisfied 7.04% 

Satisfied 8.45% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 11.27% 

Dissatisfied 5.63% 

Very dissatisfied 4.23% 

Not used 7.04% 

[No Response] 56.34% 
 
Community Group (6) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Page 15



Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 0.00% 

Not used 0.00% 

[No Response] 100.00% 
 
  

  

Page 16



The following questions, about Local Highway Managers, were only put to Members 
(16 responses received) 
 
 
Q5a. Do you know who your Local Highway Manager at Gloucestershire Highways 
is? 

Yes 100% 

No 0% 
 
 
Q5b. Have you contacted your Local Highway Manager  in the last year regarding a 
highways issue? 

Yes 100% 

No 0% 
 
 
Q5c. When contacting your Local Highway Manager, how much do you agree with 
the statement “They respond promptly to my initial enquiry” 
 

Strongly agree 62.50% 

Agree 18.75% 

Neither agree nor disagree 6.25% 

Disagree 12.50% 

Strongly disagree 0.00% 

[No Response] 0.00% 
 
 
Q5d. When you raise an issue with your Local Highway Manager, how much do 
you agree with the following statement:  “They keep me informed about the 
progress of my enquiry” 
 

Strongly agree 25.00% 

Agree 50.00% 

Neither agree nor disagree 12.50% 

Disagree 0.00% 

Strongly disagree 12.50% 
 
Q5e. When you raise an issue with your Local Highway Manager, how much do 
you agree with the following statement:  “They resolve the issue effectively” 
 

Strongly agree 31.25% 

Agree 37.50% 

Neither agree nor disagree 18.75% 

Disagree 6.25% 

Strongly disagree 6.25% 
 
  

Page 17



Question 6a 
When emailing GCCHighways@amey.co.uk , how satisfied were you with the 
professionalism of staff? 
 
Parish (71) 

Very satisfied 2.82% 

Satisfied 15.49% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 8.45% 

Dissatisfied 2.82% 

Very dissatisfied 2.82% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 67.61% 
 
Community Group (6) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 16.67% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 16.67% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 66.67% 
 
Member (16) 
No equivalent question 
 
  

Question 6b 
When emailing GCCHighways@amey.co.uk , how satisfied were you with the speed 
of response to your enquiry (ie, was your email acknowledged in the 3 working 
days)? 
 
Parish (71) 

Very satisfied 1.41% 

Satisfied 15.49% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 7.04% 

Dissatisfied 7.04% 

Very dissatisfied 4.23% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 64.79% 
 
Community Group (6) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 16.67% 

Page 18

mailto:GCCHighways@amey.co.uk
mailto:GCCHighways@amey.co.uk


Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 16.67% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 66.67% 
 
Member (16) 
No equivalent question 
 
  

Question 6c 
When emailing GCCHighways@amey.co.uk , how satisfied were you with the 
sufficiency and clarity of information provided by staff about how/when your 
enquiry would be dealt with? 
 
Parish (71) 

Very satisfied 1.41% 

Satisfied 7.04% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 12.68% 

Dissatisfied 7.04% 

Very dissatisfied 5.63% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 66.20% 
 
Community Group (6) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 16.67% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 16.67% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 66.67% 
 
Member (16) 
No equivalent question 
 
  

Question 6d 
When emailing GCCHighways@amey.co.uk , how satisfied were you with how you 
were kept informed about the progress of your request? 
 
Parish (71) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 4.23% 

Page 19

mailto:GCCHighways@amey.co.uk
mailto:GCCHighways@amey.co.uk


Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 12.68% 

Dissatisfied 7.04% 

Very dissatisfied 8.45% 

Not used 1.41% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 66.20% 
 
Community Group (6) 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 16.67% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 16.67% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 66.67% 
 
Member (16) 
No equivalent question 
 
  

The following questions were only asked of Parish Councils (71 responses received) 
 
Question 7a 
When emailing GCCCouncillors@amey.co.uk , how satisfied were you with the 
professionalism of staff? 

Very satisfied 11.27% 

Satisfied 4.23% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 1.41% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 0.00% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.10% 
 
 
Question 7b 
When emailing GCCCouncillors@amey.co.uk , how satisfied were you with the 
speed of response to your enquiry (ie, was your email acknowledged in the 3 
working days)? 

Very satisfied 8.45% 

Satisfied 5.63% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 2.82% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 0.00% 

Not used 0.00% 

Page 20

mailto:GCCCouncillors@amey.co.uk
mailto:GCCCouncillors@amey.co.uk


Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.10% 
 
Question 7c 
When emailing  GCCCouncillors@amey.co.uk , how satisfied were you with the 

sufficiency and clarity of information provided by staff about how/when your 
enquiry would be dealt with? 

Very satisfied 8.45% 

Satisfied 4.23% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 4.23% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 0.00% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.10% 
 
 
Question 7d 
When emailing GCCCouncillors@amey.co.uk , how satisfied were you with how you 
were kept informed about the progress of your request? 

Very satisfied 8.45% 

Satisfied 1.41% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 4.23% 

Dissatisfied 1.41% 

Very dissatisfied 0.00% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 84.51% 
 
  

Question 8a 
When contacting highways by letter, how satisfied were you with the 
professionalism of staff? 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 2.82% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 97.18% 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

mailto:GCCCouncillors@amey.co.uk
mailto:GCCCouncillors@amey.co.uk


Question 8b 
When contacting highways by letter, how satisfied were you with the speed of 
response to your enquiry (ie, was your email acknowledged in the 3 working 
days)? 
 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 2.82% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 97.18% 
 
 
Question 8c 
When contacting highways by letter, how satisfied were you with the sufficiency 
and clarity of information provided by staff about how/when your enquiry 
would be dealt with? 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 2.82% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 97.18% 
 
 
Question 8d 
When contacting highways by letter, how satisfied were you with how you were 
kept informed about the progress of your request? 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 2.82% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 97.18% 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Question 9a 
When contacting highways in person, how satisfied were you with the 
professionalism of staff? 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 2.82% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 97.18% 
 
Question 9b 
When contacting highways in person, how satisfied were you with the speed of 
response to your enquiry (ie, was your email acknowledged in the 3 working 
days)? 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 2.82% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 97.18% 
 
 
Question 9c 
When contacting highways in person, how satisfied were you with the sufficiency 
and clarity of information provided by staff about how/when your enquiry 
would be dealt with? 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 2.82% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 97.18% 
 
Question 9d 
When contacting highways in person, how satisfied were you with how you were 
kept informed about the progress of your request? 

Very satisfied 0.00% 

Satisfied 0.00% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 0.00% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Page 23



Very dissatisfied 2.82% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 97.18% 
 
  

Question 10a 
When using the website/Reportit, how satisfied were you with the professionalism 
of staff? 

Very satisfied 1.41% 

Satisfied 19.72% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 12.68% 

Dissatisfied 0.00% 

Very dissatisfied 1.41% 

Not used 4.23% 

Don’t know 7.04% 

[No Response] 53.52% 
 
Question 10b 
When using the website/Reportit, how satisfied were you with the speed of 
response to your enquiry (ie, was your email acknowledged in the 3 working 
days)? 

Very satisfied 5.63% 

Satisfied 22.54% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 11.27% 

Dissatisfied 4.23% 

Very dissatisfied 2.82% 

Not used 0.00% 

Don’t know 0.00% 

[No Response] 53.52% 
 
Question 10c 
When using the website/Reportit, how satisfied were you with the sufficiency and 
clarity of information provided by staff about how/when your enquiry would be 
dealt with? 

Very satisfied 1.41% 

Satisfied 11.27% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 18.31% 

Dissatisfied 5.63% 

Very dissatisfied 5.63% 

Not used 2.82% 

Don’t know 1.41% 

[No Response] 53.52% 
 
 
 

Page 24



 
Question 10d 
When using the website/Reportit, how satisfied were you with how you were kept 
informed about the progress of your request? 

Very satisfied 1.41% 

Satisfied 9.86% 

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 12.68% 

Dissatisfied 8.45% 

Very dissatisfied 9.86% 

Not used 2.82% 

Don’t know 1.41% 

[No Response] 53.52% 
 

  
Question 11 
Considering all methods of contacting us, how would you rate our response to your 
contact overall? 

Very Good 11.27% 

Good 38.03% 

Average 23.94% 

Poor 9.86% 

Very Poor 9.86% 

[No Response] 7.04% 
 
 
  

Question 12a 
Has Amey Highways Gloucestershire carried out work within your Parish / Town over 
the last 10 months/year? 
Parish 

Yes 94.37% 

No 1.41% 

Unsure 1.41% 

[No Response] 2.82% 
 
Community Group  

Yes 33.33% 

No 0.00% 

Unsure 66.67% 

[No Response] 0.00% 
 
Member 

Yes 100.00% 

No 0.00% 

Unsure 0.00% 

[No Response] 0.00% 

Page 25



 
  

Question 12b 
Which of the following types of work has Amey Highways Gloucestershire carried out 
work within your Parish / Town over the last year? 

  

 Parish 
Community 

Group Member 

Road repairs 26.11% 7.69% 17.02% 

Hedge /Tree work 8.41% 15.38% 11.70% 

Grass cutting 9.73% 15.38% 11.70% 

Gully emptying/cleansing 16.37% 7.69% 14.89% 

Public rights of way 7.52% 7.69% 7.45% 

Lengthsmen 14.16%  17.02% 

Winter salting 9.73% 0.00% 10.64% 

Drainage schemes 4.87% 7.69% 9.57% 

None of the above 0.00% 7.69%  

Other 0.88% 0.00%  

[No Response] 2.21% 30.77% 0.00% 
 
  

Question 13a 
For Road Repairs: How was the speed of the repair? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 4.23% 

Poor 22.54% 

Very Poor 12.68% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 60.56% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 16.67% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 43.75% 

Average 18.75% 

Page 26



Poor 18.75% 

Very Poor 12.50% 

N/A 6.25% 

[No Response] 0.00% 
 
  

Question 13b 
For Road Repairs: How successful were we in keeping disruption to a minimum? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 5.63% 

Average 21.13% 

Poor 5.63% 

Very Poor 5.63% 

N/A 1.41% 

[No Response] 60.56% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 16.67% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 56.25% 

Average 31.25% 

Poor 6.25% 

Very Poor 6.25% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 0.00% 
 
  

Question 13c 
For Road Repairs: How was the quality of the completed work? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 5.63% 

Average 11.27% 

Poor 12.68% 

Very Poor 9.86% 

Page 27



N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 60.56% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 16.67% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 6.25% 

Good 56.25% 

Average 12.50% 

Poor 25.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 0.00% 
 

  
 
Question 13d 
For Road Repairs: How was the attitude of our staff? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 1.41% 

Good 14.08% 

Average 12.68% 

Poor 2.82% 

Very Poor 1.41% 

N/A 5.63% 

[No Response] 61.97% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 16.67% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 6.25% 

Page 28



Good 50.00% 

Average 18.75% 

Poor 6.25% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 18.75% 

[No Response] 0.00% 

  
 
Question 14a 
For Hedge cutting/Tree Maintenance: How was the speed of the work carried out? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 4.23% 

Good 7.04% 

Average 11.27% 

Poor 1.41% 

Very Poor 1.41% 

N/A 1.41% 

[No Response] 73.24% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 16.67% 

Average 16.67% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 66.67% 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 12.50% 

Average 37.50% 

Poor 12.50% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 6.25% 

[No Response] 31.25% 
 
  

 
  

Page 29



Question 14b 
For Hedge cutting/Tree Maintenance: How successful were we in keeping disruption 
to a minimum? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 4.23% 

Good 11.27% 

Average 7.04% 

Poor 2.82% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 1.41% 

[No Response] 73.24% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 33.33% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 66.67% 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 25.00% 

Average 25.00% 

Poor 12.50% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 6.25% 

[No Response] 31.25% 
 
 
  

Question 14c 
For Hedge cutting/Tree Maintenance: How was the quality of the completed work? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 4.23% 

Good 9.86% 

Average 7.04% 

Poor 2.82% 

Very Poor 1.41% 

N/A 1.41% 

[No Response] 73.24% 
 
 

Page 30



Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 16.67% 

Average 16.67% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 66.67% 
 
 
Member 

Very Good 6.25% 

Good 25.00% 

Average 31.25% 

Poor 6.25% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 31.25% 
 
  

 
Question 14d 
For Hedge cutting/Tree Maintenance: How was the attitude of our staff? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 7.04% 

Good 8.45% 

Average 4.23% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 2.82% 

[No Response] 77.46% 
 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 16.67% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 66.67% 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 31.25% 

Page 31



Average 25.00% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 12.50% 

[No Response] 31.25% 
 
  

Question 15a 
For Grass Cutting: How was the speed of the work carried out? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 4.23% 

Good 2.82% 

Average 16.90% 

Poor 4.23% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 2.82% 

[No Response] 69.01% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 16.67% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 18.75% 

Average 31.25% 

Poor 6.25% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 43.75% 
 
  

Question 15b 
For Grass Cutting: How successful were we in keeping disruption to a minimum? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 2.82% 

Good 9.86% 

Average 14.08% 

Poor 1.41% 

Page 32



Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 2.82% 

[No Response] 69.01% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 16.67% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 12.50% 

Average 31.25% 

Poor 6.25% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 6.25% 

[No Response] 43.75% 
 
  

Question 15c 
For Grass Cutting: How was the quality of the completed work? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 4.23% 

Good 7.04% 

Average 12.68% 

Poor 1.41% 

Very Poor 2.82% 

N/A 1.41% 

[No Response] 70.42% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 16.67% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Page 33



Good 25.00% 

Average 18.75% 

Poor 12.50% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 43.75% 
 

  
Question 15d 
For Grass Cutting: How was the attitude of our staff? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 5.63% 

Good 2.82% 

Average 7.04% 

Poor 1.41% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 9.86% 

[No Response] 73.24% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 16.67% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 18.75% 

Average 18.75% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 18.75% 

[No Response] 43.75% 
 

  
 
Question 16a 
For Gully Emptying/Cleansing: How was the speed of the work carried out? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 2.82% 

Page 34



Good 18.31% 

Average 22.54% 

Poor 4.23% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 2.82% 

[No Response] 49.30% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 6.25% 

Good 12.50% 

Average 43.75% 

Poor 6.25% 

Very Poor 6.25% 

N/A 12.50% 

[No Response] 12.50% 
 

  
 
Question 16b 
For Gully Emptying/Cleansing: How successful were we in keeping disruption to a 
minimum? 
Parish 

Very Good 4.23% 

Good 23.94% 

Average 14.08% 

Poor 1.41% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 7.04% 

[No Response] 49.30% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

Page 35



N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 6.25% 

Good 18.75% 

Average 43.75% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 18.75% 

[No Response] 12.50% 
 

  
Question 16c 
For Gully Emptying/Cleansing: How was the quality of the completed work? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 4.23% 

Good 16.90% 

Average 19.72% 

Poor 5.63% 

Very Poor 1.41% 

N/A 2.82% 

[No Response] 49.30% 
 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 6.25% 

Good 18.75% 

Average 43.75% 

Poor 6.25% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 12.50% 

[No Response] 12.50% 
 
  

 

Page 36



Question 16d 
For Gully Emptying/Cleansing: How was the attitude of our staff? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 4.23% 

Good 16.90% 

Average 11.27% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 15.49% 

[No Response] 52.11% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 6.25% 

Good 37.50% 

Average 18.75% 

Poor 6.25% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 18.75% 

[No Response] 12.50% 
 
  

Question 17a 
For Drainage Schemes: How was the speed of the work carried out? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 1.41% 

Good 5.63% 

Average 5.63% 

Poor 1.41% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 1.41% 

[No Response] 84.51% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Page 37



Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 6.25% 

Average 12.50% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 12.50% 

N/A 12.50% 

[No Response] 56.25% 
 
  

Question 17b 
For Drainage Schemes: How successful were we in keeping disruption to a 
minimum? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 2.82% 

Good 7.04% 

Average 4.23% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 1.41% 

[No Response] 84.51% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 12.50% 

Average 18.75% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 12.50% 

Page 38



[No Response] 56.25% 
 
  

Question 17c 
For Drainage Schemes: How was the quality of the completed work? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 1.41% 

Good 5.63% 

Average 5.63% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 2.82% 

[No Response] 84.51% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 6.25% 

Average 18.75% 

Poor 6.25% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 12.50% 

[No Response] 56.25% 
 
  

Question 17d 
For Drainage Schemes: How was the attitude of our staff? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 1.41% 

Good 5.63% 

Average 4.23% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 4.23% 

[No Response] 84.51% 
 

Page 39



 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 18.75% 

Average 6.25% 

Poor 6.25% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 12.50% 

[No Response] 56.25% 
 
  

Question 18a 
For Public Rights of Way repairs: How was the speed of the work carried out? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 1.41% 

Good 4.23% 

Average 9.86% 

Poor 2.82% 

Very Poor 2.82% 

N/A 1.41% 

[No Response] 77.46% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 18.75% 

Average 6.25% 

Poor 6.25% 

Page 40



Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 12.50% 

[No Response] 56.25% 
 
 
  

 
Question 18b 
For Public Rights of Way repairs: How successful were we in keeping disruption to a 
minimum? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 2.82% 

Good 8.45% 

Average 8.45% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 2.82% 

[No Response] 77.46% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
 
Member 

Very Good 6.25% 

Good 18.75% 

Average 6.25% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 12.50% 

[No Response] 56.25% 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



Question 18c 
For Public Rights of Way repairs: How was the quality of the completed work? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 2.82% 

Good 9.86% 

Average 5.63% 

Poor 1.41% 

Very Poor 1.41% 

N/A 1.41% 

[No Response] 77.46% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 6.25% 

Good 12.50% 

Average 12.50% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 12.50% 

[No Response] 56.25% 
 
  

Question 18d 
For Public Rights of Way repairs: How was the attitude of our staff? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 5.63% 

Good 5.63% 

Average 2.82% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 5.63% 

[No Response] 80.28% 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Page 42



Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Very Good 6.25% 

Good 18.75% 

Average 6.25% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 12.50% 

[No Response] 56.25% 
 
 
  

Question 19a 
For Winter Salting: How was the speed of the work carried out? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 4.23% 

Good 18.31% 

Average 2.82% 

Poor 1.41% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 1.41% 

[No Response] 71.83% 
 
Member 

Very Good 31.25% 

Good 12.50% 

Average 6.25% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 12.50% 

[No Response] 37.50% 

  
 
Question 19b 

For Winter Salting: How successful were we in keeping disruption to a minimum? 

Parish 

Very Good 4.23% 

Good 18.31% 

Average 2.82% 

Page 43



Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 2.82% 

[No Response] 71.83% 
 
Member 

Very Good 25.00% 

Good 18.75% 

Average 6.25% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 12.50% 

[No Response] 37.50% 
 
  

Question 19c 
For Winter Salting: How was the quality of the completed work? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 4.23% 

Good 15.49% 

Average 5.63% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 1.41% 

N/A 2.82% 

[No Response] 70.42% 
 
Member 

Very Good 25.00% 

Good 18.75% 

Average 6.25% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 12.50% 

[No Response] 37.50% 
 
  

Question 19d 
For Winter Salting: How was the attitude of our staff? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 1.41% 

Good 12.68% 

Average 4.23% 

Poor 1.41% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

Page 44



N/A 9.86% 

[No Response] 70.42% 
 
Member 

Very Good 18.75% 

Good 12.50% 

Average 6.25% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 25.00% 

[No Response] 37.50% 
 
Question 20a 
For Lengthsmen: How was the speed of the work carried out? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 2.82% 

Good 22.54% 

Average 14.08% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 2.82% 

[No Response] 57.75% 
 
 
Member 

Very Good 31.25% 

Good 37.50% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 12.50% 

N/A 18.75% 

[No Response] 0.00% 

  
 
Question 20b 

For Lengthsmen: How successful were we in keeping disruption to a 

minimum? 

Parish 

Very Good 4.23% 

Good 25.35% 

Average 9.86% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 2.82%  

Page 45



[No Response] 57.75% 
 
Member 

Very Good 25.00% 

Good 37.50% 

Average 12.50% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 6.25% 

N/A 18.75% 

[No Response] 0.00% 
  

c 
 
  

Question 20d 
For Lengthsmen: How was the attitude of our staff? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 5.63% 

Good 19.72% 

Average 5.63% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

N/A 9.86% 

[No Response] 59.15% 
 
Member 

Very Good 31.25% 

Good 18.75% 

Average 18.75% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 6.25% 

N/A 25.00% 

[No Response] 0.00% 
 

 
Question 21a 
Amey Highways Gloucestershire endeavours to communicate with the public in order 
to help us develop and deliver schemes where a road closure is necessary. Are you 
aware of any road closures for highways maintenance or improvements that have 
taken place within your Parish / Town? 
 
Parish 

Yes 69.01% 

No 15.49% 

Not sure 12.68% 

[No Response] 2.82% 

Page 46



 
Community Groups 

Yes 16.67% 

No 33.33% 

Not sure 50.00% 

[No Response] 0.00% 
 
Member 

Yes 93.75% 

No 0.00% 

Not sure 6.25% 

[No Response] 0.00% 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 47



The following questions were only put to Parish Councils 
 
Question 22a 
Did Amey Highways Gloucestershire contact you about road closures? 
 

Yes 57.75% 

No 15.49% 

Not sure 16.90% 

[No Response] 9.86% 
 
 
Question 22b 
What method of communication did they use? 
 

Road closure advertised in local newspaper 6.67% 

Advanced notification signs 23.81% 

Residents and businesses advised by letter 15.24% 

Advanced discussions with Local Highways Manager and / or Project 
Manager 9.52% 

Don't know 0.00% 

Other 15.24% 

[No Response] 29.52% 
 
 
Question 22c 
Did any schemes take place in your parish/town where consultation with you would 
have been appreciated but did not happen? 
 

Yes 23.94% 

No 46.48% 

Don't know 25.35% 

[No Response] 4.23% 
 
  

Page 48



The following questions were only put to Community Groups 
 
Question 23a 
Did you know about road closures before they happened? 
 

Yes 50.00% 

No 0.00% 

Not sure 33.33% 

[No Response] 16.67% 
 
 
Question 23b 
How did you find out about the road closure? 
 

Road closure advertised in local newspaper 12.50% 

Advanced notification signs 12.50% 

Residents and businesses advised by letter 12.50% 

Don't know 0.00% 

Other 0.00% 

[No Response] 62.50% 
 
 

  
Question 23c 
Did any schemes take place in your parish/town where consultation with you would 
have been appreciated but did not happen? 
 

Yes 0.00% 

No 33.33% 

Don't know 66.67% 

Page 49



The following questions were put only to Members 

Question 24a 
(For Road closures in your area) What method of communication was used? 
 

Road closure advertised in local newspaper 10.71% 

Advanced notification signs 32.14% 

Residents and businesses advised by letter 17.86% 

Advanced discussions with Local Highways Manager and / or 
Project Manager 32.14% 

[No Response] 7.14% 
 

 

 

Question 24b 
How would you rate the communication for the closure? 
 

Very Good 12.50% 

Good 12.50% 

Average 43.75% 

Poor 25.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

[No Response] 6.25% 
 

 

 

 

  

Page 50



The following questions were put to Parish Councils and Community Groups 
 

Question 25a 
How would you rate the following communications used for the road closure? 
Road closure advertised in local newspaper 
 
Parish 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 9.86% 

Average 8.45% 

Poor 2.82% 

Very Poor 4.23% 

Don't know 32.39% 

[No Response] 42.25% 
 
Community Group 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 16.67% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

Don't know 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
 
Question 25b 
How would you rate the following communications used for the road closure? 
Advanced notification signs 
 
Parish 

Very Good 8.45% 

Good 19.72% 

Average 11.27% 

Poor 11.27% 

Very Poor 4.23% 

Don't know 5.63% 

[No Response] 39.44% 
 
Community Group 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 16.67% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

Don't know 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 

Page 51



  
Question 25c 
How would you rate the following communications used for the road closure? 
Residents and businesses advised by letter 
 
Parish 

Very Good 2.82% 

Good 7.04% 

Average 12.68% 

Poor 7.04% 

Very Poor 5.63% 

Don't know 21.13% 

[No Response] 43.66% 
 
 
Community Group 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 0.00% 

Average 0.00% 

Poor 0.00% 

Very Poor 16.67% 

Don't know 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
 
 
Question 25d (only put to Parish Councils) 
How would you rate the following communications used for the road closure? 
Advanced discussions with Local Highways Manager and / or Project Manager  
 

Very Good 4.23% 

Good 11.27% 

Average 5.63% 

Poor 4.23% 

Very Poor 5.63% 

Don't know 23.94% 

[No Response] 45.07% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



Question 26 
If you answered poor or very poor for the communications questions, please tell us 
why? 
 
Parish 

Insufficient notice given 6.33% 

Inaccurate information given 3.80% 

Not enough information given 13.92% 

No information was given 8.86% 

Other 1.27% 

[No Response] 65.82% 
 
Community Groups 

Insufficient notice given 0.00% 

Inaccurate information given 0.00% 

Not enough information given 16.67% 

No information was given 0.00% 

Other 0.00% 

[No Response] 83.33% 
 
Member 

Insufficient notice given 16.67% 

Inaccurate information given 11.11% 

Not enough information given 11.11% 

No information was given 0.00% 

Other 0.00% 

[No Response] 61.11% 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 53



Question 27 
Overall, how would you rate Amey Highways Gloucestershire on the service(s) it has 
provided in your parish/town? 
 
Parish 

Very Good 7.04% 

Good 26.76% 

Average 30.99% 

Poor 23.94% 

Very Poor 11.27% 

[No Response] 0.00% 
 
 
Community Groups 

Very Good 0.00% 

Good 33.33% 

Average 16.67% 

Poor 33.33% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

[No Response] 16.67% 
 
 
Member 

Very Good 12.50% 

Good 18.75% 

Average 50.00% 

Poor 18.75% 

Very Poor 0.00% 

[No Response] 0.00% 
 

Page 54



Environment and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee

20th September 2017

Commissioning Director’s Report

This report summarises key areas likely to lead to decisions over the next 6 months, 
including updates on areas previously reported.  

1.1 Relevant Cabinet/ Cabinet Member/ Council decisions:
 Quarterly Strategic Performance Report 2017/18: Quarter 1 (Cabinet, Sep)

2 Highway and Transport Authority
2.1 Highway Maintenance
2.1.1 Highways Contract (update)

 Cabinet Panel (cross-party) is being set up to give officers guidance during the 
next few months as they prepare the options for Cabinet to consider in 
September regarding the future highways contract procurement(s).  The panel 
will be chaired by Cabinet Member Vernon Smith and will meet in July and 
September.

 A number of new posts have recently been advertised as part of the restructure 
of the Highways Commissioning Team with the aim of getting sufficient resources 
in place to deliver the additional investment associated with the commitment to 
deliver £150m of highways investment over the next five years.

 Officers held a number of soft market testing event in late July where highways 
contractors had the opportunity to introduce themselves and learn more about 
Gloucestershire’s highway service.  Due to the amount of interest in the future 
contract officer have now added additional days in August to speak with potential 
contractors.

 Amey key performance indicators continue to be on track and delivery of the 
capital programme is on target.  

 With additional investment for Gloucestershire’s roads agreed in 2016/17, we 
have managed to hold a stable position regarding the condition of the road 
network.  The percentage of the network for which structural maintenance should 
be considered remained steady for principal roads at 2%, while increasing for 
non-principal roads from 4% to 5% and decreasing for the unclassified road 
network from 13% to 12%.  Performance is top quartile compared to our peer 
group and nationally for principal roads and the unclassified road network.  For 
non-principal roads, performance is equal to our peer group average.  

 The Council hit its target for 2016/17 for the percentage of 2-hour repairs 
completed on time at 95.5% despite the impact of storm ‘Doris’ on quarter 4 
when over 200 emergencies were attended to within 24 hours.  2 hour and 28 
day defect repair performance has recovered and is now at or above 96%.  The 
timeliness of 24-hour repairs was above target at 98.4%. 

 The annual gully emptying programme was delivered in full and on time in 
2016/17.

2.1.2 Highways Local (update)
 Local Highways Managers are engaging with members to determine their 

2017/18 Highways Local spend requests.  LHM’s continue to work with members 
to revise and cost up work requests so that all works can be commissioned and 
delivered.

Page 55

Agenda Item 5



2.1.3 Lengthsmen (no change)
 The Lengthsmen programme proved to be very successful and popular in 

2016/17 with regular compliments received about the work of the five lengthsmen 
gangs.  Amey have geared up for 2017/18 and the work programme started in 
May.

2.1.4 Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs, update)
 Officers continue to engage with local members regarding completion of 2016/17 

schemes and invite applications for 2017/18 schemes.  An update on the current 
2016/17 schemes can be found below; 

o Tewkesbury town centre waiting restrictions – the scheme will not be 
progressed in 2017/18.

o Alderton Speed limit – The TRO Report has been completed and the 
scheme is going ahead as advertised, the order to be made by Legal 
Services, and construction is being planned.

o Longborough speed limit – TRO complete, awaiting construction.
o Davy Way, Quedgeley waiting restrictions – scheme complete.
o Exmouth Street waiting restrictions.  TRO complete, awaiting construction.
o 2017/18 TRO budget (£100k agreed at council) – four schemes have been 

approved by the Lead Cabinet Member and are being commissioned with 
Amey:
 Cheltenham – package of works for various parking restrictions.
 Wotton Under Edge – package for various parking restrictions.
 Gloucester – City Centre Prohibition of Driving.
 Gloucester – City Centre Restricted Parking Zone.

 A list has been compiled of all TRO’s (including hump notices and development 
funded TROs) that are ongoing.  This list is updated monthly and is available on 
the Council’s website; http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/extra/tros.

2.1.5 LED Street Lighting Project (no change)
 Skanska completed the milestone of over 26,000 (50%) LED conversions.  

Works are ahead of contracted programme.  Work has now moved into the rural 
areas.  

2.1.6 Traffic Signal Maintenance Contract (update)
 The contract has been awarded to Telent (current supplier); mobilisation will start 

in the coming weeks.  Start date for contract 1st October 2017.
2.2 Highway Useage
2.2.1 Network Management

 Asset Management (no change)
o An Annual Report is produced retrospectively outlining Asset Management 

activities around Highways Maintenance.  The latest version covering 
2015/16 is available on the County Council’s website and can be viewed 
here.

o The Transport Asset Management Plan is available on the website in a 
chapter by chapter format to allow for a gradual updating of the Plan.  It 
can be viewed here.

 Parking (update)
o Cheltenham West – implementation is complete and enforcement 

commenced on 1st August.  Experimental Order investigating changes in 
one small discreet area as requested by small businesses; changes to 
parking behaviour and displacement are now being monitored.

Page 56

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/extra/tros
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2153/highways-annual-asset-management-report-2016-final.pdf
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/transport/transport-asset-management-plan-tamp/


o Kemble Permit Scheme progressing to formal consultation, planned for 
Sep.  

o New Consolidated Bus Lane Order, enabling improved enforcement of bus 
lanes across the County, is ready for formal consultation.  

o Publicly accessible ParkMap system to go live in October, significantly 
improving public self- service through online access to parking information.

 Air Quality (update)
o Following its consideration in July of a report into air quality outside 

schools this committee agreed to establish a Task Group to develop a plan 
of action which tackles air quality and its interaction with the Public’s 
Health.

o In July Defra published the government’s strategy ‘UK plan for tackling 
roadside nitrogen dioxide concentrations’ (DEFRA, 2017). This places 
responsibility for reductions of ‘hot spots’ of nitrogen dioxide with Local 
Authorities, supported by Government funding. The strategy sets out 
expectations that Local Authorities have a draft action plan to deliver the 
national strategy by the end of March 2018. More details will be shared 
with the Task Group.  

2.2.2 Cheltenham Transport Plan (update)
 Phases one and two have now been completed on site - monitoring is complete 

and shows minimal adverse impact, with the scheme being considered a 
success.

 Design of Phase three is underway and construction is being planned.
 In tandem with the development of Phase 3, exploration of options for Phase 4, 

the trial closure of Boots Corner under an experimental Traffic Regulation Order, 
is underway.  Indication is that Phases 3 & 4 should be considered as being 
delivered together as they are too interdependent.  Officers are considering a  
proposed amendment to the scheme.

2.2.3 Cycling (update)
 There are a number of initiatives/projects currently underway for cycling.  Annex 

1 provides an update on each.
2.2.4 Public Transport (update)

 Changes to Cheltenham and Tewkesbury bus networks have been introduced by 
our commercial partners, while more are planned for Gloucester, Stroud and the 
Forest.  The county council has made an effort to fill gaps where these have 
been produced, though this has not always been met with a positive response.  
Current efforts to ensure gaps left by the re-routing of the 33 Ross-Gloucester 
service are filled adequately are ongoing.

 Officers are meeting with operators of the bus networks to the north of 
Gloucester to design possible changes to the 351, 353 and 11 services.  Officers 
will continue to review the effectiveness of the wider bus network with a view to 
keeping costs per passenger return journey below the target £8 for rural return 
and £2 for urban return journeys.

2.2.5 Total Transport Pilot (update)
 We are close to appointing a contractor, in partnership with Somerset County 

Council for the development of a Total Transport web portal through which users 
and their advocates should be able to find all the information available about 
transport options and as phase 2 to book transport whether conventional (e.g. 
bus) or unconventional (e.g. Dial a Ride).  The pilot is fully funded by the 
Department for Transport and the procurement process is being led by Somerset.

Page 57



2.2.6 Commons and Rights of Way (CROW) Committee
 Deregulation Act (no change)

o Commencement of the Rights of Way provisions contained within the 2015 
Deregulation Act has been further delayed, with no firm date set.  

o Criteria for Preliminary Assessment Test have been drawn up and test 
applied provisionally to all outstanding undetermined (84) applications.  

 Definitive Map Modification Orders (DMMOs, update)
o 1 application was determined at CROW Committee on 30 March 2017 and 

the decision appealed, it has now been submitted to the Secretary of State.
o 1 application is due to be considered at the next CROW Committee on 5 

October 2017.
o We have received 3 new applications between May 2017 and August 

2017.
o Number of outstanding applications is now 118.
o Number of undetermined applications (excluding archived byway 

applications) is 32.
o 1 Orders have been confirmed since May 2017.
o Training for the majority of new CROW Committee members took place on 

22 June 2017, a further training day is scheduled for 5 September 2017 for 
3 members who missed the first training day.

3 Infrastructure and Major Projects  
3.1 Major Transport Projects
3.1.1 Major Schemes

 A417 Missing Link (update)
o Highways England and their consultants continue the process of reducing 

the large number of initial scheme options down to a manageable number 
for the next stage of scheme development.  

o Two workshops have been held to date with workshop 3 taking place on 7 
September.

o The A417 Missing Link Steering group continues to meet frequently with 
Nigel Riglar and Cllr Stowe attending on behalf of GCC.

o An A417 Communications group is being set up with representatives 
attending from GCC, Tewkesbury Borough Council and Cotswold District 
Council along with other key stakeholders

o The funding agreement between the county council and Highways England 
has now been completed.  This allows the county council to contribute £1m 
towards the scheme development being undertaken by Highways England, 
as agreed at the county council’s Cabinet.

o Highways England intends to hold a public share event in the autumn.

 Cinderford Spine Road (update)
o Phase One of the road is nearing completion and construction work has 

started on the College.
o Civil engineering and utility services works complete, together with final 

road surfacing.
o Completion of landscaping works planned for September 2017.
o Planting of trees in accordance will planning conditions planned for 

November 2017 (earliest available planting season).

Page 58



 Elmbridge (update)
o Traffic signals switched off as part of continuing works.  Lights to be off 

until scheme completion in September (then replaced by new 
infrastructure).

o Surfacing elements of the works began mid-August (overnight road 
closures planned).

o Scheme currently on time and on budget – provisional completion date 21st 
September.

3.1.2 Local Growth Fund (update)
 The initial £62.5m Growth Deal funding was announced in July 2014.  This 

original announcement included £14.1M major tail-end funding, now reduced to 
£9.07m to be paid directly from the Department for Transport (DfT) to the 
promoter; this is for Elmbridge Roundabout Scheme.  A further £15M of Growth 
Deal funding was announced in January 2015 and in February 2017 a further 
£29.13 million was secured in the third round of Growth Deal funding for the 
following projects:

o Longford Housing – £4.53 million
o Cyber Business Park – £22 million (DfT retained scheme)
o Gloucestershire College Forest of Dean Campus – £2.6 million

 In addition to the major tail-end funding allocation and the DfT-retained scheme 
(see above), £32,057,000 of the total Growth Deal allocation for Gloucestershire 
is allocated to the following transport schemes:

Scheme
Allocation

£’000
Indicative LEP Board 
decision date Promoter

A419 corridor 4,360 10/10/2017 Gloucestershire County Council 
Access to Berkeley site 1,150 12/12/2017 Gloucestershire County Council 
Lydney strategy 1,000 12/12/2017 Gloucestershire County Council 
Berkeley bridges 1,990 15/12/2015 - approved Gloucestershire County Council 
Cinderford Northern Qtr 3,800 15/12/2015 - approved Gloucestershire County Council 
Glos South West Bypass 2,000 10/10/2017 Gloucestershire County Council 
St Barnabas Roundabout 1,000 Q4 2018/19 Gloucestershire County Council 
B4063 Junction 1,600 Q4 2018/19 Gloucestershire County Council 
A40 Over Rnd & Highnam 2,230 13/12/2016 - approved Gloucestershire County Council 
A40 Corridor Bus Priority 
Scheme

- Promoter withdrawn Gloucestershire County Council 
& Stagecoach 

Abbeymead / Metz Way 500 04/10/2016 - approved Gloucestershire County Council 
Gloucester Transport Hub 6,400 16/02/2016 - approved Gloucester City Council 
Cheltenham Spa Railway 1,497 10/10/2017 Great Western Railway
Longford Housing 4,530 Q3 2018/19 Tewkesbury Borough Council
Total Transport 32,057
 The LEP is currently undertaking a process for the re-allocation of Growth Deal 

funds that become available due to project changes.  To aid this process, 
information from all projects with indicative funding, not yet confirmed, has been 
gathered to inform a ‘status’ report. 

 Through a written procedure, the LEP Board decided in August that the following 
transport schemes had their indicative funding confirmed:

o A40 Longford Traffic Scheme 
o A419 Corridor Improvements 
o Gloucester South West By Pass 
o Cheltenham Spa Railway Station 
o Lydney Transport Strategy 

Page 59



 The following transport schemes were allowed extra time, for a final decision at 
the October Board:

o B4063 Staverton Bridge Junction 
o A38 B4066 access to Berkeley 
o St Barnabas Roundabout 

 For more information, please see the LEP Board paper on the “Written 
Procedure: Agenda Item 4 – Growth Deal Programme reallocation of funds”: 
http://www.gfirstlep.com/gfirst-LEP/About-Us/The-Board/.

3.1.3 Capital Programme, 2017/18 (update)
 Delivery of the highway capital programme is progressing well and is currently on 

target in most areas of the programme.
3.1.4 Highways England update (update)

 Highways England has published final versions of its Route Strategies.  The 
Route Strategies set out the issues for the Strategic Road Network and will 
enable the DfT to prioritise investment in the next Road Investment period from 
2020 to 2025.  A series of workshops were held around the Country in July, with 
county council officers attending the Exeter workshop.

 An A46 Member Partnership group met for the 3rd time on 22 June.  Cllr Vernon 
Smith is the county council member representative on the group and chair, which 
comprises members from county and district councils in Gloucestershire, 
Worcestershire, Warwickshire and now also Leicestershire, as well as the LEPs.  

 A prospectus is being prepared by the A46 Partnership setting out the ask of the 
authorities along the A46, which in Gloucestershire is for improvements to be 
made to M5 J9 and the A46 through Ashchurch.  The prospectus is aimed at 
raising the profile of the road with a view to securing investment from 
Government for improvements.

 Two A46/J9 events took place in March - one aimed at businesses and one for 
residents.  Over 700 responses have been received as a result of the various 
events, Councillor Smith’s newsletter and emails sent out to businesses.

 Housing Infrastructure Fund.  The Government has announced a new £2.3bn 
fund for local authorities and District Councils to bid to, to deliver new 
infrastructure to support new and existing communities.  Bids can be made of up 
to £250m by the County Council, with an Expressions of Interest to be submitted 
by the deadline of 28 September.  Two Expressions of Interest are proposed to 
be submitted; one for an M5 Junction 10 upgrade and one for improvements to 
M5 Junction 9 and the A46.

 Growth and Housing Fund (GHF).  Government has also issued advice regarding 
a second round of the GHF, which the LEP and county council was unsuccessful 
with in round 1.  There is a very quick turnaround for these bids, with LEPs 
having to submit by 8 September and it is expected that only schemes that are 
ready for delivery will be submitted.  It is whether Gfirst LEP will submit a bid, 
although they are being encouraged to do so.

3.2 Planning
3.2.1 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and Section 106 (S106) Agreements (update)

 The national Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Review reported in February 
2017 alongside the publication of the Housing White Paper.  It assessed the 
extent to which the CIL does or can provide an effective mechanism for funding 
infrastructure, and has recommended a number changes to which the 
government will respond.  

Page 60

http://www.gfirstlep.com/gfirst-LEP/About-Us/The-Board/


 Council officers responded to the Department for Communities and Local 
Government setting out the importance of the Council’s role in infrastructure 
delivery, and the problems faced by upper-tier authorities that cannot become 
CIL Charging Authorities.  A number of these concerns, shared with other 
counties, have been reflected within the report.  For now, CIL will remain, and 
progress should continue, but updates will be provided when any changes are 
forthcoming.

 Within Gloucestershire, progress on District CIL Charging Schedules is as set out 
in Annex 2.  Two consultations are required: the Preliminary Draft Charging 
Schedule (PDCS) and the Draft Charging Schedule (DCS).  After the DCS 
consultation, an independent examiner holds an Examination in Public, and 
reports to the authority, which then makes further changes or proceeds to adopt.  

 As of April, CIL has been operational within Stroud district and the county council 
continues to cooperate with the other district councils in the development of their 
CIL schemes.  

 Financial contributions that arise through S106 Planning Agreements are agreed 
between the County Council and the Developer/Owner as part of the planning 
application process, to mitigate against the specific impacts of a particular 
development, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and 
CIL Regulations 2010 as amended.  

 The Local Developer Guide, which sets out the County Council’s expectations 
from development and guides how the Council will negotiate developer 
contributions, was updated in December 2016 and approved by Cabinet now that 
CIL is being introduced.

 At Gloucestershire County Council, the financial contributions agreed with 
developers relate mainly to strategic infrastructure, such as highways and 
transportation, schools and libraries.  Once received, S106 contributions can only 
be spent in accordance with the specific terms set out in an Agreement.  

 Contributions become due on trigger dates which are set out in each agreement.  
For example, an education contribution may be due after a certain number of 
new dwellings have become occupied.  The County Council has a S106 
Monitoring Officer who monitors the triggers in agreements and liaises and 
invoices developers when contributions become due.  

 Annex 3 shows the quarterly statistics for S106 contributions agreed, due and 
received.

 Highways Development Management will soon be writing to districts about a 
change to our process for commenting on planning applications.  In response to 
their feedback, it has been agreed that in addition to our standard comment 
process we will provide districts with a summary sheet.  One objective is to 
enable members of planning committees to see that the highway authority may 
have concerns about a development but that these do not warrant a 
recommendation to refuse the application.

3.2.2 Joint Core Strategy (update)
 The JCS Examination started in May 2015.  County Council officers have 

provided specific information to the Examination Inspector, including further 
written representations on various matters, a position statement on strategic 
highways modelling, a Duty to Cooperate paper and an agreed Statement of 
Common Ground.  Officers attended the Examination in March 2016 to deal with 
transport/highways and infrastructure issues.  An ‘interim findings’ Inspector’s 
report was published end May 2016.  Officers subsequently attended further 
Examination sessions in July 2016 and July 2017, again to deal with 

Page 61



transport/highways and infrastructure issues.  County Council officers are 
continuing to assist the JCS authorities regarding the transport implications of the 
JCS proposals, including commissioning further transport modelling using the 
new 2013-base SATURN model.  The Inspector’s final report is expected in 
autumn 2017.

3.3 Waste
3.3.1 Joint Waste Committee (update)

 The forecast for 2017/18 is a reduction in residual waste due to the full-year 
effect of the new improved waste services in Stroud and changes to recycling 
collections in other areas.  This will result in an anticipated recycling rate of 54% 
for the year.

 A report is being prepared by the Joint Waste Team and Commercial Services for 
consideration by the Joint Waste Committee and Cabinet.  This is to provide for a 
short term interim arrangement for residual waste disposal to cover the gap 
between expiry of the current landfill contract in August 2018 and 
commencement of operation of the Javelin Park Energy from Waste facility in or 
around summer 2019.  The current contract also provides for landfilling of 
residual waste and some other services including composting of garden waste, 
the bulking and haulage of waste, and the monitoring of three closed landfill 
sites.  It is proposed that these other services will be tendered as separate 
contracts to commence in January 2020.

 A major project to improve recycling services in Cheltenham and replace an 
aging fleet is at an advanced stage with the new service due to commence in 
October 2017.  This will involve the addition of further materials for recycling, new 
vehicles and round changes.  The new recycling vehicles on order are of the 
same type successfully used in Forest of Dean since the service change was 
implemented there successfully in 2016.

 Improvement works to the Hempsted Household Recycling Centre are almost 
complete.  Following site closure to allow for the construction of a new road, the 
site now has two lanes available to traffic which is assisting in an improved traffic 
flow within the site and reducing queuing times.  Final works to undertake 
landscaping and replace fencing and lighting will be completed before winter.

 Work to replace the failing waste compactors at Hempsted and Pyke quarry with 
new mobile compaction equipment has started.  This investment will provide a 
more efficient and flexible solution which will lead to reduced maintenance costs, 
increased recycling and higher load densities, thereby reducing haulage costs.  It 
is anticipated that these will be operational by next spring.

 A full-time Head of Joint Waste Service has been appointed and will start in post 
in late October 2017.

 The latest performance forecast is included at Annex 4.
3.3.2 Residual Waste Project (update)

 The project is making good progress and is still on target following rescheduling 
of works to take account of additional piling works required.  

 The reinforced concrete floor slab to the main boiler hall, some 7 metres below 
ground level, has now been cast, and is ready for casting concrete columns on 
this floor that will support the main turbine building floor at ground level.

 Excavation of the bunker to 14 metres below ground level has been completed 
and the ground is being prepared for casting the floor slab.  The concrete floor 
slab for the flue gas treatment (FGT) hall is around 25% complete.

Page 62



 Plans are in hand for the commencement of slip forming (continuous concrete 
pouring) for construction of the main waste storage bunker, towards the end of 
August. 

 Site operations and Health and Safety continue to a high standard.  
 Low level construction activities are continuing at weekends, under the working 

and notification scheme agreed with the Waste Planning Authority and Stroud 
District Council.

 Having explored the feasibility, cost and risks of alternative routes, the Western 
Power Distribution (WPD) electricity grid connection cable will follow the original 
contracted route agreed between WPD and Urbaser Balfour Beatty (UBB), along 
the public highway via the B4008, including Stonehouse High Street.  WPD have 
designed their works programme to minimise disruption to traffic and businesses, 
including rescheduling works along the High Street to avoid the Christmas and 
Easter periods.  The council will provide funding to cover the full cost of 
reinstating the shared space section of the High Street to its current standard.

4 Minerals and Waste Planning 
4.1 Minerals Local Plan (MLP, no change)

 Officers are still analysing consultation responses to the draft MLP, which 
incorporates a meticulous review of the content of the draft MLP to determine 
whether proposed revisions to the plan are reasonable and necessary.

 A noteworthy proposed revision to the plan already being looked at is 
acknowledgement that Gloucestershire no longer contains candidate licensed 
areas for oil & gas exploration.  This follows a decision taken by the prospective 
licensee in autumn 2016 to reject a conditional licence offer presented by the 
government – via the Oil & Gas Agency (OGA).

 The ambition remains for the emerging MLP to progress towards the more formal 
plan-making process before the end of 2017.  This will include preparing a 
version of the plan for submission to the Secretary of State in advance of an 
independent examination.  This version of the plan (to be known as the 
‘publication’ plan) must undergo a final round of public consultation for which a 
timeframe is presently being reviewed – although is likely to occur in early 2018.

 Following adoption the new MLP will provide a local policy framework to deal with 
all minerals-related planning matters that arise across the county through to the 
end of 2032.  

4.1.1 Oil & Gas Exploration (update)
 Council Motion 782 was resolved at Full Council on 6th December 2016.  It 

requests the cabinet member for fire; planning and infrastructure establish a 
cross-party advisory group to consider those aspects of the Local Minerals Plan 
that relate to ‘Fracking’.  Elected members have been appointed to a cross-party 
group and an initial meeting is timetabled for 11th September 2017.  The group 
will provide feedback through the group chair – the cabinet member for fire, 
planning and infrastructure to ECSC and Cabinet in due course. 

5 Community Resilience
5.1 Renewable Energy Generation on the Council’s Estate (no change)

 Following the significant reduction of Government subsidy officers are reviewing 
options for the way forward including the viability of future investment in ground-
mounted solar PV generation on the Council’s estate.

Page 63



5.2 Carbon Reduction Programme (update)
 The Council has a target to reduce carbon emissions from its estate by 60% by 

2020/21 against the 2006/07 baseline.  
 Emissions for the corporate estate are significantly ahead of target, a 19% 

reduction against the target of 6% for 2016/17.  This will mainly be as a result of 
LED Street Lighting installed under the new contract, together with ICT 
improvements and ongoing works to Shire Hall, coupled with mild weather.  

 The council has now halved its corporate emissions over the past 10 years and is 
ahead of target to reduce corporate emissions by 60% by 2020/21; emissions 
have reduced from 26,800 tCO2e* in 2006/07 to 13,900 tCO2e in 2016/17.

 Renewable energy generation on the Council's estate is currently limited.  Solar 
panels will be installed on the roof of Shire Hall as part of the refurbishment and 
options for further investment across the estate are being investigated.
(*tCO2e = tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, which is a standard unit for 
measuring carbon footprints.  The idea is to express the impact of each different 
greenhouse gas in terms of the amount of CO2 that would create the same 
amount of warming.  That way, a carbon footprint consisting of lots of different 
greenhouse gases can be expressed as a single number.  The conversion 
factors used in the UK are published annually by government; see Government 
emission conversion factors for greenhouse gas company reporting.)

5.3 Adaptation and Resilience
5.3.1 Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA)

 Delivering Sustainable Drainage Systems (update):
o Gloucestershire County Council, as the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA), 

has a statutory duty to provide substantive responses within 21 days to 
consultation referrals received from the Local Planning Authority regarding 
developer’s proposals for the management of surface water on major 
planning applications.

o During the period 1st April 2017 to 30th June 2017 the LLFA received 45 
planning application referrals and responded to 98% of these within the 21 
day response deadline.  

o In addition to the work required to provide advice on planning applications 
officers have also had to deal with 18 requests for pre-application advice, 
follow up enquiries, re-submitted information and 21 requests to discharge 
planning conditions.

 Priors/Oakley Flood Alleviation Scheme (new item)
o Work has commenced on a £2.5 million scheme to construct a flood 

alleviation scheme designed to protect 179 properties at risk from flooding. 
The scheme comprises two surface water attenuation basins and a 
number of channel diversions and improvements to watercourses on the 
Noverton Farm and Priors Farm sites.  The scheme involves holding back 
surface water running off the Cleeve escarpment and releasing it back into 
the existing watercourses at a controlled rate.  The nature of the scheme 
will mean that existing land uses can continue after completion of the 
scheme and minimise the impact on landowners and the local community. 

5.3.2 Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership (LNP, update)
 The LNP Board and full partnership last met on the 6th July.
 The Board commissioned a review of the LNP, which has now been received.  It 

has been adopted with a few small revisions but is pending observations from the 
full membership.  It proposes the appointment of a LNP manager/co-ordinator 

Page 64

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/government-conversion-factors-for-company-reporting
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/government-conversion-factors-for-company-reporting


and a fund to pay for this as well as administration.  An updated mission 
statement and a new vision have been produced alongside focused themes for 
activity and work programme.  The LNP needs to be more visible and a 
communications plan is to be worked up.  A new set of countywide nature 
conservation objectives were urgently needed to replace the former Biodiversity 
Action Plan.  The County Council intends to meet with the LNP Chair to discuss 
the review, including finance, and that the council should have a new separate 
place on the LNP Board.

 European Structural and Investment Fund (ESIF)
o Two Green Infrastructure (GI) project bids have now been approved and 

will be worked up in more detail for final acceptance in the autumn.  The 
approved projects are receiving local and national technical assistance to 
progress the project ideas. They are:

 Cheltenham Green Infrastructure (GI, lead partner Cheltenham Borough 
Council) – increasing and linking up GI in Cheltenham including rain 
gardens, green roofs, walls and benefits to existing green spaces such as 
parks and River Chelt corridor.  Modification of transport scheme designs 
to have softer landscaping and SuDS features installed.

 Joint Core Strategy (lead partner Gloucester City Council) – implementing 
its GI strategy including ‘Your River’ aspects in Cheltenham, Gloucester & 
Tewkesbury.  Connecting and improving river and also rail corridors for 
wildlife and people.

o If successful Grant Funding Agreements (GFA) would be signed in late 
autumn 2017.  A second and final call for other project bids may occur later 
in 2017 for the remaining £1.5M available.

 The GI benchmark being produced by the Wildlife Trust is complete and will be 
launched soon.  It has 3 strands of Biodiversity, Health & Wellbeing and Water. 
Development can then apply to be awarded ‘achieved’ and ‘excellent’ levels.

5.3.3 National Adaptation Programme (NAP, update)
 The Climate Change Act (CCA) 2008 put in place a policy framework to promote 

adaptation action in the UK consisting of:
o The UK Climate Change Risk Assessment (CCRA) is a five-yearly 

assessment of the major risks and opportunities from climate change to the 
UK.  The Adaptation Sub-Committee (ASC) of the Committee on Climate 
Change has a duty to advise Government on the preparation of the risk 
assessment.  

o To inform the 2017 risk assessment, the ASC published an independent 
evidence report of the risks and opportunities to the UK from climate 
change in July 2016, UK Climate Change Risk Assessment 2017.  This 
identified the key risk as being:

Page 65

https://www.theccc.org.uk/tackling-climate-change/the-legal-landscape/global-action-on-climate-change/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-climate-change-risk-assessment-government-report
https://www.theccc.org.uk/about/structure-and-governance/asc-members/
https://www.theccc.org.uk/publication/uk-climate-change-risk-assessment-2017/


o Defra used the ASC’s evidence report as the basis of the Government’s 
report, UK Climate Change Risk Assessment 2017, laid before Parliament 
in January 2017.  The Government endorsed the conclusions of the 
Adaptation Sub-Committee, with the exception of some of those on food 
security.

o The National Adaptation Programme (NAP) is the Government’s long-term 
strategy to address the main risks and opportunities identified in the 
CCRA, which is also produced every five years.  The first National 
Adaptation Programme was published in July 2013.  The ASC reported to 
Parliament on the progress made in the implementation of this programme 
in 2015, and again in June 2017; ‘2017 Report to Parliament - Progress in 
preparing for climate change’.  It includes 28 recommendations, with its 
overall conclusion being that, despite some progress, the level of risk has 
increased for a significant number of priorities.  In particular:
 It does not deem sufficient the measures set out in NAP1 to avoid the 

impacts of climate change increasing.
 More areas are assessed as ‘red’ in terms of vulnerability than in the 

2015 ASC report.
 It suggests that a critical part of the next NAP should be a long-term 

plan for Natural England that takes climate change into account, builds 
on the ambition of current EU policies, and is consistent with the 
framework developed by the Natural Capital Committee.

 It reiterates advice in 2015 report: the NAP should set clear priorities for 
adaptation, include measurable objectives that can be monitored and 
evaluated, and focus on core set of policies and implementation activity 
that will deliver most benefit.

 The next NAP need to address important interdependencies between 
climate change risks and policy responses in national, local and 
devolved government.

 The next NAP should have a strong focus on evidence and evaluation.
 The report includes 4 Local Government recommendations:

Page 66

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-climate-change-risk-assessment-2017
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/adapting-to-climate-change/supporting-pages/national-adaptation-programme
https://www.theccc.org.uk/publication/2017-report-to-parliament-progress-in-preparing-for-climate-change/
https://www.theccc.org.uk/publication/2017-report-to-parliament-progress-in-preparing-for-climate-change/


1. Government should set out in NAP2 how it will ensure local 
authorities (LAs) have access to the technical expertise, guidance, 
and practical tools they need.  Potential for professional bodies such 
as the Royal Town Planning Institute and Chartered Institution of 
Water and Environmental Management to take a greater role in 
providing information, training and advice.

2. To stimulate activity and improve monitoring and evaluation, LAs 
should be included within the scope of the third Adaptation Reporting 
Power (ARP) round.  Defra should identify the most efficient means 
for LAs to report on actions and progress being made to prepare 
communities for climate change.

3. NAP2 should develop stronger sub-national approaches to climate 
change adaptation that promote business and infrastructure 
resilience, healthy communities, and investment in natural capital. 
E.g., working with London and core city regions, metro mayors, and 
LEPs and LNPs.

4. Government should review the effectiveness of land-use planning 
system in achieving reductions in greenhouse gas emissions from 
buildings and transport, and enhancing the resilience of communities 
and the built environment to the impacts of climate change.

 Government is required to respond by mid-October 2017.
 The next NAP will be published in July 2018.

o The UK Adaptation Reporting Power grants the Secretary of State the 
power to require public service organisations to produce reports on what 
they are doing to adapt to climate change.  Nearly 90 organisations, 
primarily infrastructure providers, reported under the first round.  The 
Government published an updated strategy for the second round of 
reporting in July 2013, alongside the National Adaptation Programme.  
Under the new strategy, authorities report on a voluntary basis, and those 
that reported in the first round should provide an update on their progress 
of implementation.

 The Local Adaptation Advisory Panel (LAAP) for England (update)
o The LAAP acts as an efficient forum for dialogue between local 

Government, central Government and arms length delivery bodies.  The 
LAAP played a key role in shaping the Local Government Chapter of the 
NAP published in 2013.

o The LAAP’s function includes to support the delivery of NAP Objective 28 
(to raise and maintain the profile of adaptation with local councils and 
promote action), and specifically the NAP action for the ‘LAAP to champion 
and disseminate examples of local authority work to embed adaptation in 
councils’.

o The Council’s Commissioning Director, Communities & Infrastructure has 
recently become the Chair of the LAAP, co-ordinating the development of a 
national local authority response to the CCRA and influencing the NAP; 
working with the Local Government Association, Defra, the Association of 
Directors of Environment, Planning & Transport (ADEPT) and Climate UK.

o A small amount of resources, including officer time, has been made 
available to support the Commissioning Director in this role.

o The LAAP met again in July to continue its preparations for submitting 
evidence to the government’s anticipated NAP consultation, where it was 
agreed to draft a joint response to government on the ASC’s 2017 

Page 67

https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/adapting-to-climate-change/supporting-pages/adaptation-reporting-power


progress report, together with the Association of Directors of Environment, 
Planning and Transport (ADEPT).

6 Community Resources and Partnership Projects
6.1 GlosCol RFD Campus Cinderford (update)

 Plans to establish a high quality further education and training facility in 
Cinderford are continuing to progress following the securing of additional capital 
resource from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA), the recent Growth 
Deal 3 confirmation of a further £2.6 million (see 3.1.2) and the County Council’s 
near completion of the construction of Phase 1 of the Cinderford Northern 
Quarter Spine Road.  Serving as the new Royal Forest of Dean campus for 
Gloucestershire College and the cornerstone of the education-led regeneration 
proposals for the Northern Quarter in Cinderford, the project involves the 
relocation of GlosCol’s current campus at Five Acres in Coleford to a 6,000 sq.  
meter, purpose built facility in Cinderford, with the Five Acres site being released 
for housing.  The college build programme started in May 2017 and they are 
working towards a planned occupation and formal opening in September 2018.  

6.2 Cotswold Canal Trust (update)
 Phase 1A – Bowbridge; works on bridge and highway now complete, small 

amount of dredging required to make it fully navigable, will be completed in next 
few weeks, working with Stroud District Council (SDC).

 Phase 1A – Brimscombe Port; SDC in receipt  of a £2m grant/loan from HCA. 
SDC looking to resolve land barrier of existing highway structure. SDC have 
employed Atkins as consultant, GCC working with SDC to find deliverable 
solution. Once the bridge works are complete the development opportunity of 
Brimscombe Port is likely to become commercially viable.

 Phase 1B – Saul to Stonehouse; the £15m Lottery Heritage Fund bid, match-
funded with £5m of Canal Trust funding, a mix of voluntary labour and cash, a 
refreshed bid is planned to be submitted in November 2017.  The Council 
continues to support the project and is part of the core group in assisting delivery 
and the bid, which will be represented at the next opportunity.  

 Phase 1B – working with Cotswold Canal Trust on developing a design for Walk 
Bridge, if delivered prior to lottery bid it will help the demonstration of 
deliverability.  However the scheme is currently in excess of available budget.

6.3 Gloucester Transport Hub (was Gloucester Bus Station, no change)
 Funding has been secured from GFirst LEP and GLTB.
 Kier has been appointed by Gloucester City Council to take forward the design 

and build work for the new Bus Station.  
 The Formal Consultation for the Traffic Regulation Orders on the highway works 

commenced on the 15th July for 28 days, which was supported by a public share 
event at the bus station on the 22nd July to allow stakeholders to view the 
proposals for the highway works.

 The sequencing of the works has been heavily affected by the lengthy lead in 
required by the large number of utility apparatus diversionary works required as 
part of the works.

 Britannia has been appointed Contractor for the Highway Works following an 
open tender process, with the City Council acting as Employer under the 
contract.

 Construction works began on the highway elements of the scheme on 18th May 
and is expected to last until early 2018; the first phase of the work including the 

Page 68



reopening of Station Road/Bruton Way junction and kerb-line alterations to 
Station Road are on programme.  

 All 2017/18 costs have been recovered from Gloucester City Council for highway 
design and procurement.

6.4 Lydney (update)
 The overflow rail station car park is now open and discussions are taking place 

regarding future lease arrangements.
6.5 Libraries (update)

 David Vaisey prize.  A shortlist announcement event was held at Gloucester 
Cathedral on Tuesday 1st August.  There have been 4 libraries shortlisted for the 
David Vaisey Prize, which are:  Bream Community Library, Brockworth 
Community Library, Longlevens Library and Tuffley/Matson Libraries.  The 
shortlist was announced by the Chair of the judges, Anne Robinson.  All libraries 
will win at least £1,000 with the winner receiving £5,000.  The winning library will 
be announced at the Cheltenham Times & Sunday Times Literature Festival on 
Sunday 8th October.  The prize will be awarded by Alan Bennett and there is a 
large media presence expected.

6.5.1 Growth Hub – Tier 3 bid (update)
 The first of the library Growth Hubs will go live within the next month.  A 

communications plan has been drawn up and we will be planning to launch the 
libraries as they come on line.

6.5.2 Open+ (update)
 The executive summary of the project is attached as annex 5.

7 Quarterly Performance Update (update)
7.1 Key service information reported to cabinet for Quarter 1 2017/18 has been covered 

in this report, with the scorecard attached as Annex 6.  
 Information relating to the portfolio of services provided by the Gloucestershire 

Fire and Rescue Service on behalf of the county council is detailed in the Chief 
Fire Officer’s report.

Contact Officer
Nigel Riglar, Commissioning Director: Communities & Infrastructure
nigel.riglar@gloucestershire.gov.uk, 01452 328470

Page 69

mailto:nigel.riglar@gloucestershire.gov.uk


ANNEX 1: CYCLING UPDATE
Updates on the cycling initiatives/projects currently underway are set out below:
Initiative/ 
Scheme

Update

Barriers to 
Cycling Report 

Purpose: To identify both ‘hard’ infrastructure limitations and the need for ‘soft’ 
measure such as training, across urban and parts of rural Gloucestershire.
Update: The Gloucester Barriers to Cycling scheme (Eastern Avenue in 
Gloucester) and the Cheltenham Barriers to Cycling Scheme (A40 east of 
Cheltenham) are both programmed to commence on site in September 2017. 
The Cheltenham scheme went out for TRO consultation for the contraflow 
cycling on Sandford Mill Road.  Those making representations have been 
responded to and the TRO report authorising the order to progress has been 
signed off.  There were a lot of objections to the concept of a shared 
footway/cycleway on London Road, so that element has been put on hold but 
may be looked at again at a later date.
Work has already been undertaken on the Gloucester Barriers to Cycling 
scheme for the removal and planting of trees where required. 
Budget is likely to alter from £45k/£105k to £40k/£110k.

Capital 
programme/s106

Purpose:  County Council has a capital programme for scheme delivery, some 
of which is allocated for cycling schemes.
Update: The following schemes have funding allocated for 2017/2018

 Moreton Park Cycle and Pedestrian Facilities
 Barriers to Cycling Gloucester
 Barriers to Cycling Cheltenham
 Bristol Road Cycle and Safety Scheme
 Northway Lane, Tewkesbury Cycle track
 Pedestrian Cycle Linkages Cold Pool Lane to Morrisons
 Kingsditch Lane, Cheltenham Cycle Improvements

Highways 
England – SRN 
barriers

Purpose: Highways England is managing a £100m budget for improving 
facilities for cyclists on the Strategic Road network (SRN).  Their top priority for 
the Gloucestershire area is the link between Gloucester and Cheltenham and a 
package of improvements, worth £3.5m has been proposed by Highways 
England for the B4063.
Update: Highways England is currently working up the design for the various 
cycle schemes on the B4063, with a view to holding a public share event later in 
the Autumn.  If all continues to schedule, design and delivery will take 2 years.
Highways England’s top priority for the north Gloucestershire area (HE Area 9) 
is M5 Junction 9 and the severance this causes cyclists travelling between 
Northway, Ashchurch and Tewkesbury town.  They are focusing on the route to 
the north of Junction 9, along Northway Lane, as an alternative for cyclists 
having to cross the motorway junction.  Further updates will be provided as they 
become available.

DfT Cycling 
Delivery Plan 
2014

Purpose: The Government has now published a Cycling and Walking 
Investment Strategy (CWIS).
Update: The CWIS was published in April 2017, with Lead Cabinet Members 
briefed at the June meeting.  Local authorities will be expected to develop a 
local area CWIP-Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan as one of the actions 
in the CWIS.  Officers attended a workshop on 13 June to hear more about 
producing Gloucestershire’s CWIP, and resources that might be available to 
support cycling within the County.

Gloucestershire 
County Council 
Travel Plan

Purpose:  The Travel Plan for the Shire Hall Complex has been developed as 
part of the Green Impact review which aims to support, recognise and accredit 
organisations for supporting actions on sustainability.  The Travel Plan also 
supplements the work of Thinktravel, the LSTF funded programme which was 

Page 70



aimed at encouraging and promoting sustainable travel within Gloucestershire.  
Update:  The Travel Plan is being reviewed in light of changes to car parking in 
relation to the Quayside and Blackfriars regeneration.

LTP-Cycle and 
Think travel 
strategies

LTP was adopted at Full Council on 29 June 2016.

Cycle liaison 
group update

Cycle liaison group met on 12 June 2017.

Cycle 
Champions

A group of cross-party Cycle champions has been formed and last met on 26 
July.  Cllr Lesley Williams is the chair of the group.

Page 71



ANNEX 2: Community Infrastructure Levy

The table below shows progress on District CIL Charging Schedules.

Local 
Authority

PDCS 
Consultation

DCS 
Consultation

Proposed rates Next steps

Stroud DC Feb 2014 April – June 
2016

Resi1: £80/Sqm
Retail2: £75/Sqm

Adopted and effective 
as of April 2017

Gloucester 
City Council

May – July 
2015

May – June 
2016

Resi:
1-10 units: £0/Sqm
11+ units: £45/Sqm
Strategic Sites1: £variable but 
generally £35/Sqm
Out-of-Town retail: £100/Sqm

Examination: 2017

Adoption: 2017

Cheltenham 
BC

May – July 
2015

May – June 
2016

Resi:
1-10 units: £148/Sqm
11+ units: £200/Sqm
Strategic Sites1: £variable but 
generally £35/Sqm
Retirement Homes: £200/Sqm
Extra Care Homes: £100/Sqm
Out-of-Town retail: £100/Sqm

Examination: 2017

Adoption: 2017

Tewkesbury 
BC

May – July 
2015

May – June 
2016

Resi:
1-10 units: £104/Sqm
11+ units: £200/Sqm
Strategic Sites1: £variable but 
generally £35/Sqm
Out-of-Town retail: £100/Sqm

Examination: 2017

Adoption: 2017

Cotswold DC Published for 
consultation 
June – 
August 2016

Expected late 
2016

Resi1: £80/Sqm
Retail3: £60/Sqm

Consultation on DCS 
undertaken in October 
2016.  Progress 
towards an Examination 
in early 2017, with 
adoption later in 2017.

Forest of 
Dean DC

Not yet 
published

The Forest of Dean 
District Council Cabinet 
resolved in April 2015 to 
support the 
development of a 
potential CIL in the 
District when resources 
are available.  

Notes:
1) Strategic sites are excluded from CIL charge as infrastructure will most likely be secured 

through S106.
2) Supermarkets and retail warehouses
3) All retail

Page 72



ANNEX 3: Section 106 Planning Quarterly Contributions

The tables below show the quarterly statistics for S106 contributions agreed, due and 
received.

S106 Contributions Agreed:
Quarter Number of 

Agreements 
Signed

Total Value 
Negotiated

Q1, Apr 2015 – Jun 2015 11 £1,935,109.45
Q2, Jul 2015 – Sep 2015 10 £1,574,110.00
Q3, Oct 2015 – Dec 2015 7 £8,327,342.00
Q4, Jan 2016 – Mar 2016 15 £8,216,894.00
Q1, Apr 2016 – Jun 2016 11 £1,737,570.00
Q2, Jul 2016 – Sep 2016 11 £2,234,717.00
Q3 – Oct 2016 –Dec 2016 6 £1,246,812.00
Q4 – Jan 2017  – Mar 2017 3 £1,437,439.00
Q1 – April 2017 – June 2017 11 £4,117,000.00*
* There was one agreement in this quarter with a negotiated value of over £1.86m, which explains 
why the total negotiated value is higher than previous quarters.  The planning application relates to 
Land South of Grange Road for 250 dwellings.  The application is currently subject to an appeal.  

Such raw figures always need some explanation:
 These contributions will only become due to the County Council on the grant and 

subsequent implementation of the planning permission in line with specific trigger 
dates as set out in the individual Agreements.

 The figures showing signed agreements include those with a valid planning 
consent as well as those that are subject to appeal.  For example; the headline 
figure in Q3 (October 2015 – December 2015) included the Leckhampton 
(Shurdington Road, 650 dwellings) development/agreement, with a negotiated 
value of over £6.5m, which was dismissed on appeal.  In Q4 (January 2016 – 
March 2016), the Leckhampton (Farm Lane, 377 dwellings) 
development/agreement with a negotiated value of £2,728,142.00 was allowed 
on appeal.

S106 Contributions Due:
The table below shows details of developments with contributions valued over £50,000 
that have become due in June/July 2017.  
Developer Amount Development
Newland Homes Limited £133,279.74 Land adjoining Arbour Close, Mickleton-

Education

Miller Homes £150,750.50 Land off Broad Marston Road, Mickleton 
– Education/Library and Travel Plan

Persimmon Homes Severn 
Valley

£93,370.95 Land at GCHQ Oakley, Cheltenham-
Education

Page 73



Developer Amount Development
Robert Hitchins £112,800.00 Land West of Stonehouse, Nastend 

Lane-Residential Travel Plan

St Modwen Homes £137,493.88 Former Lister Petter Site, Dursley-
Education

Bovis Homes (Western) 
Ltd

£284,643.41 Land at London Road, Fairford – Library 
and Education

S106 Contributions Received:
Contributions become due on trigger dates which are set out in each agreement.  The 
table below shows the contributions valued over £100,000 that have been received during 
June/July 2017.  
Developer Amount Received in May/June 2017
QUVL c/o Gardiner & 
Theobald

£123,235.77 Former RAF Quedgeley, Naas 
Lane, Kingsway – Sustainable 
Transport

Newland Homes 
Limited

£133,279.74 Land adjoining Arbour Close, 
Mickleton – Education and Library 

Miller Homes £150,750.50 Land off Broad Marston Road,  
Mickleton – Education, Library and 
Travel Plan

Page 74



ANNEX 4: Waste Performance for 2016/17

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Forecast

Total Municipal Waste 293,833 288,680 280,205 278,355 287,823 298,019 301,432 309,470 303,973
Variance -4.4% -1.8% -2.9% -0.7% 3.4% 3.5% 1.1% 2.7% -1.8%
Municipal Waste Landfilled 169,023 152,956 147,092 144,822 155,366 161,009 156,498 153,556 140,975
Variance -4.2% -9.5% -3.8% -1.5% 7.3% 3.6% -2.8% -1.9% -8.2%
DIY Waste 9,065 9,449 10,123 8,687 10,414 10,472 11,617 10,751 9,914
Variance -1.0% 0.3% 0.5% -1.2% 1.4% 0.0% 10.9% -7.5% -7.8%

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Forecast

Total Household Waste 276,816 273,373 261,792 261,291 266,475 275,949 277,864 286,638 283,395
Variance -4.5% -1.2% -4.2% -0.2% 2.0% 3.6% 0.7% 3.2% -1.1%
H’hold Waste Landfilled 161,072 145,911 137,337 134,504 138,141 146,335 146,158 136,435 127,591
Variance -3.6% -9.4% -5.9% -2.1% 2.7% 3.6% -0.1% -6.7% -6.5%
Reuse & Recycling 66,501 70,348 68,771 70,189 71,075 69,967 73,029 80,116 84,289
Variance -5.7% 5.8% -2.2% 2.1% 1.3% -1.6% 4.4% 9.7% 5.2%
Food & Garden Waste 49,244 54,914 55,100 55,803 56,637 60,104 59,132 69,618 71,515
Variance -2.9% 11.5% 0.3% 1.3% 1.5% 6.1% -1.6% 17.7% 2.7%
Total Recycling 115,744 125,262 123,871 125,992 127,712 130,071 132,161 148,832 155,804
Variance 4.5% -8.2% 1.1% -1.7% -1.4% -1.8% 1.6% 12.6% 4.7%

The 2017/18 forecast is based largely on estimated data as it is still relatively early in the year for reporting.  However, the impact of the 
Stroud service change during 2016/17 is now filtering through to the full 2017/18 year and demonstrates significant benefits in terms of 
reduced waste to landfill and increased capture of recycling and composting, as was seen during previous service changes in other 
districts 5 years ago.  It is likely that this forecast will change slightly in future reporting as the year progresses, but is certain to show 

P
age 75



continued significant benefits.  As a result we are forecasting a recycling rate in the region of 54% for the full year.  This is the last 
planned major service change within Gloucestershire and step changes of this scale are unlikely to be seen again with the current 
configuration of services.  As stated in previous reports, the Joint Waste Committee has agreed to look at new options for increasing 
performance and establishing common service aspects across all partner areas when opportunities arise in the coming years.  This will 
be a focus for the partnership as we move forward.

Landfill waste reducing and recycling 
increasing due to service changes in 

Forest of Dean and Stroud

P
age 76



ANNEX 5

Bishops Cleeve Library Pilot – Executive Summary

Gloucestershire Library Service piloted an enhanced library offer for Gloucestershire 
in Bishops Cleeve library between 7th November 2016 and 31st March 2017. Bishops 
Cleeve library was chosen as the pilot site as it is the fourth busiest library in the 
county (2015/16), accounting for 5.6% of all visits to libraries.

Open+
The open+ system allows customer access to the services provided by the library, 
and the library building as a community venue, on a self-serve basis across an 
additional 26.5 hours of opening. Open+ technology allows approved customers to 
self-serve outside of core library opening hours by giving them access to the library 
building, thus providing them with more choice and flexibility as to when and how 
they engage with the library service.  The solution can automatically control and 
monitor building access, self-serve kiosks, public access computers, lighting and 
alarm systems. 

Open+ technology was installed in the library at the end of October 2016, with a “soft 
launch” period of two weeks in order to allow some identified customers to trial the 
setup.  The open access went live on 7th November 2016.

Between 7th November 2016 and 31st March 2017 328 customers signed up to use 
open+, with good usage and people travelling from as far as 26 miles away to use 
the service. The youngest person to sign up is 17 years old with the 2 oldest 
members being 91 years of age.

68 unique users accessed the library 166 times during April.  35 customers accessed 
the library on more than one occasion during April with the highest number of 
accesses being 19 times. 

During the pilot period the People’s Network PCs were used a total of 304 times 
during open+ hours. Usage was slow to start off but picked up towards the end of the 
project. There has been an increase in the total number of items loaned during the 
pilot period.

ICT provision
The IT infrastructure was radically changed in order to accommodate the open+ 
system.  The self service machines, gadgets and open+ system were all changed to 
operate through the broadband Wi-Fi system.  

The main lesson to be learnt from the pilot period is that clarity is needed over the 
technical setup.  Identifying the cause of faults was a problem. The Wi-Fi needs to 
be robust enough to deal with the new technology going through it and there needs 
to be a clear fault reporting procedure.

Customer Satisfaction
During the pilot period one formal complaint and 18 informal complaints were 
received, all of which were due to problems with technology. There have been no 
recorded incidents and the emergency telephone has only been used on one 
occasion by mistake.  The security company has not been required to attend the site 
due to the open+ system.

Page 77



Open+ pilot executive report
19th July 2017

During two open+ sessions, customers were surveyed to gauge their feedback on 
the use of the new system. Users were very positive about the system, with 82% 
rating the system as 9 or 10 (out of 10) for ease of use and the majority of customers 
using it to borrow books.

We have also surveyed customers who signed up to use the system but have not 
done so. The main reasons for this were either that they did not need to use the 
library outside of staffed hours or that they have not yet had chance to complete the 
induction. 

Access to additional services
During the pilot, partners and voluntary and community sector (VCS) organisations 
were welcomed to use and share the public library space for ‘pop up’ advice 
roadshows, engagement events, service delivery or information provision.

A meeting pod, equipped with Skype technology, has been provided within the 
library.  . Tewkesbury Borough Council are delivering a successful face-to-face offer 
from this space weekly as an alternative to the Parish Council offices. Library Staff 
are also answering regular enquiries about the Friday morning sessions and are now 
being viewed as an extension of TBC services by the local community.

During the pilot period the library also hosted a Health & Wellbeing day; three digital 
assistance days and a children’s STEM activity. Feedback from these events was 
positive. In addition a new “Health & Wellbeing Zone” was created to provide 
preventative advice and guidance to customers, a dementia “Share a Poem” group is 
operating and we are in talks with NHS 2gether over their “Let’s Talk” campaign.

Capital Project 
The attached grid shows the predicted costs and the actual costs of the project:

Predicted Actual Notes
Open+ £19,000 £19,045 Actual system was £14k 

but needed new gates at 
£5k

Infrastructure ICT - £25,000

Property - £3,464
(Less lighting 
upgrade at £12,520)

ICT - £26,195 

Property - £13,379

ICT – a lot of Sopra Steria 
time went into supporting 
the set up of Open+

Property – There were 
aspects overlooked by 
Property at the point of 
identifying costs.

Tech (Gadget 
Bar, End panel, 
Surface table)

£10,000 £18,700 We installed 2x 4 seater 
gadget bars instead of 1x 4 
seater which increased the 
cost.  We also brought in 
additional digital 
equipment.

Refurbishment £33,166 £26,256 Costs came in lower than 
anticipated.

Page 78



Open+ pilot executive report
19th July 2017

Totals £90,630 £103,575 + £12,945 – this is mainly 
the additional costs 
associated with 
unidentified property costs 
and the decision to 
purchase additional digital 
equipment, however this 
was still within capital 
budget costs.

Revenue costs
Buildings
The utility costs have shown an overall reduction from 2015/16 as demonstrated 
below:

2015/16 2016/17
Electricity £3,330 £2,863
Gas £2,253 £1,950
Premises/Repairs £7,200 £3,705
Water £494 £588

Libraries revenue costs:
Libraries have incurred ongoing revenue costs of £1,500 for the maintenance of 
open+ system and £500 for maintenance of the VPN.

Staffing
Staffing costs between 2015/16 and 2016/17 did see an increase of 3%, however, 
additional staff were put in to cope with the level of demand for inductions.  The cost 
per visit rose from 61p in 2015/16 to 64p in 2016/17, however the library was closed 
for two weeks and the open+ system is increasing in use so we are confident that the 
costs per visit will fall in 2017/18.

Overall Pilot Summary
A great deal has been learned from this pilot and it is believed that some of the costs 
associated with this project would not be as great going forward.  The open+ system 
has been welcomed by customers but there is still some work to do around the 
marketing to non-users.  The ability to be able to create additional opening hours has 
been hugely popular with all library users and has not incurred any significant 
ongoing revenue costs and has, in fact, seen a reduction in utilities spend.

Staff have been extremely positive about the open+ system and, in the main, about 
the new way of working.  The main cause of frustration has been the issues with the 
ICT infrastructure and in particular the gadgets. 

Our recommendation would be to go forward with introducing open+ into libraries 
where there are sufficient developer’s contributions and the changes required to the 
buildings allow us to do this.

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment & Communities Scrutiny 
Committee, Performance Annex 6

Quarter 1 2017/18

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

Page no.
Key to Symbols 2
Economy, Skills & Growth 3
Highways & Flood 5
Fire, Planning & Infrastructure 6

1

P
age 81



Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Level of
Risk Score

Low 1 - 6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Performance better than tolerance

Performance within tolerance

Performance worse than tolerance

No information

Missing target

No value

Value Increasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Decreasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Increasing (Bigger is Better)
Value Decreasing (Bigger is Better)

No change

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Plan is best Where it is best for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Key to Symbols

Key to Symbols - Risk

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with

the Likelihood of each risk)

The Gloucestershire Risk Matrix

2

P
age 82



Highways & Flood
Cllr Vernon Smith

Highways & Floods

28 day defects repaired or
made safe - overall %
repaired in time (other
defects)

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

83.0 % 98.5 % 95.8 % 92.8 % 96.4 % 95.0 % Publicly
Reported

28 day defects repaired or
made safe - % repaired in
time (potholes)

Bigger is
Better ? ? new indicator, data not yet available

Publicly
Reported

% delivery of the annual
gulley emptying
programme

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter 46.0 % 58.0 % 83.5 % 100.0 % 34.0 % 30.0 %

Publicly
Reported

% of Sustainable Urban
Drainage responses made
to Local Planning
Authorities within 21 days

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

98.7 % 95.4 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 98.0 % 95.0 % Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Q1 (2016/17) Q2 (2016/17) Q3 (2016/17) Q4 (2016/17) Q1 (2017/18) Q1 Target

(2017/18) Comments Q1 (2017/18)

3

P
age 83



Fire, Planning & Infrastructure
Cllr Nigel Moor

Trading Standards

Number of
complaints/reports of scam
activity against vulnerable
individuals (includes
doorstep crime)

Bigger is
Better 83 ?

Publicly
Reported

% of complaints/reports of
scam activity against
vulnerable individuals
where there is a trader
present or immediate risk
of additional loss
responded to within 1
working day

Bigger is
Better

100.0 % 100.0 %

A one day response is only appropriate where there is
evidence that the victim is at immediate risk due to a
fraudster being present or we have information that the
victim is actually intending to send money in response to a
fraud. All other scam reports are assessed according to the
level of detail identifying the victim, the scam perpetrator
and whether or not the victim has correctly identified a
scam and is likely to respond to it.  Where the victim can
be identified, the Service will usually seek to advise or
support them over a longer timeframe.  

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Q1 (2016/17) Q2 (2016/17) Q3 (2016/17) Q4 (2016/17) Q1 (2017/18) Q1 Target

(2017/18) Comments Q1 (2017/18)

Road Safety

(A) Number of killed and
seriously injured children

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 3 8 14 20 4 ? Publicly
Reported

(B) Number of killed and
seriously injured older
people

Smaller is
Better Year to Date 13 35 48 59 12 ?

Publicly
Reported

Number of killed and
seriously injured people

Smaller is
Better Year to Date 54 136 207 277 65 ?

Provisional figures. A change in the method of reporting
injury collisions has resulted in an increase in the number
of serious casualties in Gloucestershire.  The Department
of Transport is investigating nationally the effect of this
change. Until the results of the investigation is known the
quarterly reporting of all killed and serious injury (KSI)
figures should be viewed with caution.

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Q1 (2016/17) Q2 (2016/17) Q3 (2016/17) Q4 (2016/17) Q1 (2017/18) Q1 Target

(2017/18) Comments Q1 (2017/18)

4

P
age 84



Cost per journey
(community transport
journeys)

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter £6.23 £4.46 £3.75 £4.00 £3.61 £4.00

Publicly
Reported

Number of bus services in
receipt of subsidy

Plan is Best Year to Date 104 104 103 105 105 105 Publicly
Reported

Number of community
transport bus journeys

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 17,886 31,173 33,319 32,802 31,607 31,000 Publicly
Reported

Average cost per single
passenger journey on
public transport

Smaller is
Better £1.35 £1.38 £1.38 £1.38 £1.45 £1.45

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Q1 (2016/17) Q2 (2016/17) Q3 (2016/17) Q4 (2016/17) Q1 (2017/18) Q1 Target

(2017/18) Comments Q1 (2017/18)

Fire & Rescue

Number of Safe and Well
visits undertaken

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 2,010 1,711 1,564 1,730 1,661 1,700 Publicly
Reported

% of incidents of dwelling
fires attended within 8
minutes - Risk Category 1

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter 83.3 % 91.7 % 92.0 % 77.0 % 70.0 % 80.0 %

Publicly
Reported

% of Safe and Well visits
undertaken to those in high
risk groups

Bigger is
Better 75.0 % 75.0 %

Publicly
Reported

Number of Accidental
dwelling fires

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 83 76 72 68 62 73 Publicly
Reported

Number of Deliberate
dwelling fires

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 5 6 5 1 5 5 Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Q1 (2016/17) Q2 (2016/17) Q3 (2016/17) Q4 (2016/17) Q1 (2017/18) Q1 Target

(2017/18) Comments Q1 (2017/18)

Climate Change

Renewable Energy
Generation (kWh) from the
Council Estate (including
schools)

Bigger is
Better

Snapshot 98,943 156,090 205,023 275,146 313,136

Opportunities for increasing generation on the estate are being
investigated.  For 2016/17, renewable energy generation increased by
13.8%, however most of this is from schools.  From 2017/18 we will no longer
be reporting schools data as they are outside our control.

Publicly
Reported

Renewable Energy
Generation from the
Council Estate - % of total
energy consumption

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 0.41 % 0.40 % 0.28 % 0.23 % 0.26 %

Opportunities for increasing generation on the estate are being
investigated.  For 2016/17, renewable energy generation increased by
13.8%, however most of this is from schools.  From 2017/18 we will no longer
be reporting schools data as they are outside our control.

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis - No Target (1 Quarter In Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Q1 (2015/16) Q2 (2015/16) Q3 (2015/16) Q4 (2015/16) Q4 (2016/17) Comments Q4 (2016/17)

5

Parking & Passenger Transport

P
age 85



Overall Council Carbon
Emission, buildings &
transport (excluding
schools) Tonnes of CO2

Smaller is
Better

Year to Date 3,285 6,439 11,347 16,280 13,580 15,200

Ahead of target performance due to the on-going LED
street lighting works and improvements to Shire Hall,
together with mild weather.  The council has now halved
it's corporate emissions over the past 10 years and is ahead
of target to reduce corporate emissions by 60% by
2020/21, against the 2006/07 baseline. Emissions have
reduced from 26,800 tCO2 in 2006/07 to 13,900 tCO2 in
2016/17.

Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target (1 Quarter In Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Q1 (2015/16) Q2 (2015/16) Q3 (2015/16) Q4 (2015/16) Q4 (2016/17) Q4 Target

(2016/17) Comments Q4 (2016/17)

6

P
age 86



Deputy Leader of the Council and Finance & Change
Cllr Ray Theodoulou

Waste

Cost to dispose of landfill waste per household (£s per annum) Smaller is
Better

Forecast £53 Publicly
Reported

Percentage of household waste sent for
reuse, recycling and composting

Bigger is
Better

Forecast 47.14 % 47.35 % 51.87 % 54.64 % 54.00 % Publicly
Reported

Percentage of municipal waste
landfilled.

Smaller is
Better

Forecast 53.99 % 52.19 % 49.74 % 46.43 % 46.00 % Publicly
Reported

Residual household waste per household
(kgs)

Smaller is
Better

Forecast 531 531 496 458 467 Publicly
Reported

Overall residual waste arisings (except
HRC's) Tonnes

Smaller is
Better

Forecast 127,286 126,582 118,259 117,191 119,342 Publicly
Reported

% of household waste sent to landfill Smaller is
Better

45.18 % 46.00 % Publicly
Reported

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Forecast - No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Forecast
Outturn
2017/18 (Q1)

Comments Q1 (2017/18)

Quarterly Trend Analysis - Forecast Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Outturn
2014/15

Outturn
2015/16

Outturn
2016/17

Forecast
Outturn
2017/18 (Q1)

Target
Outturn
2017/18

Comments Q1 (2017/18)

7

P
age 87



Strategic Risk Register Summary

SR4.1
Failure to deliver expected benefits/outcomes from the
Residual waste project impacting on future budgets and
the environment.

Riglar, Nigel High 25 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 a

SR9.1
Failure to deliver outcomes of the Prevent Strategy
impacting on the residents and businesses of
Gloucestershire

Edgar,
Stewart High 20 High 15 High 15 High 15 High 15

Home Office 1 day Peer Review took place on
15th June 2017. Feedback report was positive
with partnership working being highlighted as
excellent.

SR9.2
Failure to deliver outcomes of the Prevent Strategy
impacting on the council's reputation due to exposure in
national media

Edgar,
Stewart High 25 High 15 High 15 High 15 High 15

Strategic Risk 4: Waste Management

Ref. Risk Owner Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Q2
16/17

Residual
Risk Q3
16/17

Residual
Risk Q4
16/17

Residual
Risk Q1
17/18

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed
Residual Risks

Strategic Risk 9: Gloucestershire Prevent

Ref. Risk Owner Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Q2
16/17

Residual
Risk Q3
16/17

Residual
Risk Q4
16/17

Residual
Risk Q1
17/18

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed
Residual Risks

8

SR10.1 Edgar,
Stewart High 15 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9

SR10.2

Inability of the Council or a key partner to effectively
respond to an incident or event external to the council
that results in community disruption and failure to
return to normal, within required timescales.
Inability of the Council or a key partner to effectively
respond to an incident or event that results in
significant service disruption and failure to return to
business as normal, within required timescales.

Edgar,
Stewart Moderate 12 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9

SR10.3 Implications of the Policing and Crime Bill impacting on
the Fire & Rescue Service and County Council

Edgar,
Stewart High 15 High 15 High 15 High 15 High 15

The Policing and Crime Bill received Royal
Assent on the 31 January 2017. Following
accession, with support from central
Government funds the OPCC appointed
external consultants to develop a business
case which will be considered and options
consulted upon as appropriate. Until the
outcome of the business case and the intention
of the PCC is known the strategic risk will
remain high due to the uncertainty of future
governance.

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats

Ref. Risk Inherent
Risk

Residual
Owner Risk Q2

16/17

Residual
Risk Q3
16/17

Residual
Risk Q4
16/17

Residual
Risk Q1
17/18

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed
Residual Risks

P
age 88



SR12.1
Failure of the Council/Gloucestershire to adapt to a
more volatile climate, with rising temperatures,
continually high and increasing energy prices and the
increasing need to reduce carbon emissions.

Riglar, Nigel High 25 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

In summary for Q4, 2016/17 (reported in
arrears):
- GCC estate emissions are significantly
ahead of target, which will mainly be as a result
of LED Street Lighting installed under the new
contract, together with ICT improvements and
works to Shire Hall, coupled with mild weather. 
The council has now halved it's corporate
emissions over the past 10 years and is ahead
of target to reduce corporate emissions by
60% by 2020/21, against the 2006/07
baseline. Emissions have reduced from 26,800
tCO2 in 2006/07 to 13,900 tCO2 in
2016/17.
- Schools performance is no longer reported,
as accountability for their performance has
passed to the Dept for Education.
- Energy spend (GCC) data now excludes
schools and reflects corporate emissions
performance, with a corresponding reduction in
energy use and spend. Targets will be revised
for 2017/18 based on 2016/17 performance.
- Renewable energy generation on the
Council's estate is very limited.  Options for
further investment are being investigated.

GCC now chairs the Local Advisory Adaptation
Panel for England.  The LAAP was established
by Defra in 2011 as a forum for dialogue on
adaptation between central and local
government and to provide support that would
assist local government in adapting to climate
change. The current emphasis is on a more
strategic and policy focused direction. The
LAAP currently consists of 17 members from
Defra, DBEIS, Environment Agency, LGA and
councils and meets bi-monthly. It does not
formally report to any Defra or local
government organisation.
The output of the work of LAAP will help to
identify any gaps in existing Government
policy and allow LAAP to suggest any
modifications to policy to make the country
more resilient to climate change. The output of
LAAP will be submitted for inclusion within the
next iteration of the National Adaption
Programme (NAP) due to be published by
Government in 2018.

SR14.1 Emergence of Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Riglar, Nigel High 20 High 15 High 15 High 15 High 15

5 of the 6 District Councils are now actively
progressing a CIL (the exception being the
FoD). GCC officers continue to monitor
progress and engage in every possible
consultation opportunity.

Strategic Risk 12: Climate Change

Ref. Risk Owner Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Q2
16/17

Residual
Risk Q3
16/17

Residual
Risk Q4
16/17

Residual
Risk Q1
17/18

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed
Residual Risks

Strategic Risk 14: Community Infrastructure Levy

Ref. Risk Owner Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Q2
16/17

Residual
Risk Q3
16/17

Residual
Risk Q4
16/17

Residual
Risk Q1
17/18

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed
Residual Risks

10

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Title Chief Fire Officer Report
Environment and Communities Scrutiny Committee

CFO suite of 
Services

Fire and Rescue, Trading Standards, 
Registration, Coroner Services and Civil Protection Team. 

Date of meeting 20th September 2017

Purpose of Report To provide a strategic update on issues and key areas of service 
provision.    

1. Fire and Rescue

1.1 Emergency Service Collaboration Report

Police and Fire collaboration is high on the agenda at this time and therefore a report has 
been commissioned by the Service Senior Leadership Team (SLT) to identify all joint 
working currently being undertaken at national, regional and local level. The report 
demonstrates a wide range of collaboration already taking place with further progress being 
made and additional opportunities being explored; the report makes a number of 
recommendations for the future.
The recent Policing and Crime Act 2017 introduced a statutory duty on all emergency 
services to keep collaboration opportunities under review and to enter into collaboration 
where it would be in the interests of efficiency or effectiveness to do so. 
 
1.2 Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) Announcement

Fire and Police Governance Review
The final report on the case for change in Gloucestershire has been released. Martin Surl, 
the Police and Crime Commissioner has issued a formal response which indicates that the 
case for a change in governance is finely balanced. In concludes by stating that the 
governance change process will now be put on hold indefinitely.
The PCC has stated he intends to work with the new Inspectorate for Police and Fire and 
Rescue Services (HMICFRS) to ensure Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) 
meet their statutory responsibilities under the Policing and Crime Act. 

1.3 Statement of Assurance
The Fire and Rescue National Framework for England (the Framework) sets out the 
Government’s expectations for Fire and Rescue Authorities, those expectations include a 
duty to provide an annual Statement of Assurance (SOA) on financial, governance and 
operational matters.

Page 91

Agenda Item 6



2

This is the fifth year in which the County Council, as Fire Authority for GFRS, will have 
produced this retrospective report. It brings together key governance, performance, financial 
and operational information relating to GFRS during 2016/17. The draft SOA will follow the 
path outlined below before publication:

 Agreement by SLT regarding style, presentation and content of the SOA
 Approval by SLT to take forward to Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) Internal 

Audit for review and verification of financial data included in the Statement of 
Assurance as true and accurate

 Approval by SLT to take forward the final draft to LCM/Environment and Scrutiny for 
comment

 Approval by GCC to publish the agreed final version of the SOA.

1.4 Capital expenditure

The Service has submitted six Capital bids consisting of the following:

 Fire vehicles (total Bid £1.45m) as per the asset management strategy to include:
2 rural fire appliances 
1 high reach aerial appliance 
1  rapid response small fire unit
20 emergency response light vehicles)

 Personal Protective Equipment total Bid £950K.
This is linked to the “spend to save” option with a £160Kpa saving on revenue 
costs highlighted as MTC 2 savings

 Control Room Upgrade
Upgrade/ replacement systems (hardware and software) to meet future 
technological advancement

 Carbonaceous burn fire facility:
This supports the long term Training and Development Strategy for staff by 
ensuring realistic hot fire training can be conducted 

 Fire Suppression Equipment 
Improving firefighter safety and better outcomes for victims of fire through the 
implementation of new technology

 Fitness Equipment 
Support safer firefighters by providing long term health surveillance and 
monitoring, reducing sickness and improving availability. 

Page 92



3

2. Registration Services
2.1 New Legislation
Registration services are currently monitoring the following legislation and issues that may 
arise:

 Civil Partnerships, Marriages and Deaths Bill 
 Ecumenical Marriage Bill 

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/lbill/2017-2019/0021/lbill_2017-
20190021_en_1.htm  

 Marriage Act 1949 (Amendment) Bill 
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/lbill/2017-2019/0045/lbill_2017-
20190045_en_2.htm#l1g1     

 Civil Partnership Act 2004 (Amendment)Bill  
http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2017-
19/civilpartnershipact2004amendmentmixedsexcouples.html

 Judicial Review regarding Humanist Weddings (Northern Ireland) 
http://www.lawandreligionuk.com/2017/06/25/law-and-religion-round-up-25th-june/ 

3. Coroners Services
3.1 Performance

The Coroners Service has continued to hit all of its main key performance indicators (KPIs), 
particularly the time to autopsy and percentage of cases being dealt with within 6-months 
(target time under the Coroner & Justice Act 2009). Referrals remain steady and the team 
have worked well to ensure KPIs are achieved.

Page 93

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/lbill/2017-2019/0021/lbill_2017-20190021_en_1.htm
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/lbill/2017-2019/0021/lbill_2017-20190021_en_1.htm
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/lbill/2017-2019/0045/lbill_2017-20190045_en_2.htm#l1g1
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/lbill/2017-2019/0045/lbill_2017-20190045_en_2.htm#l1g1
http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2017-19/civilpartnershipact2004amendmentmixedsexcouples.html
http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2017-19/civilpartnershipact2004amendmentmixedsexcouples.html
http://www.lawandreligionuk.com/2017/06/25/law-and-religion-round-up-25th-june/


This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2017/18

14 June 2017 12 July 2017 20 September 2017 22 November 2017

Introduction to Communities and 
Infrastructure

Quarter 4 2016/17
Performance Report

Quarter 1 2017/18
Performance Report 

Minerals Local Plan

Air Quality Monitoring Schools 
Project

Motion 772 – Highway Customer 
Service Satisfaction Survey

Draft Integrated Risk Management 
Plan 2018-21

Issues relating to the Policing and 
Crime Act 2017: Emergency 

Services Collaboration
 P

age 95

A
genda Item

 7



17 January 2018 7 March 2018 9 May 2018 11 July 2018

Quarter 2 2017/18
 Performance Report

Quarter 3 2017/18
Performance Report

 
Quarter 4 2017/18

Performance Report

Draft Integrated Risk Management 
Plan 2018-21 – To agree ECOSC 

Consultation Submission

FUTURE ITEMS

1 Fastershire Broadband 6 Infrastructure Planning

2 A417 Missing Link 7 Extension of the Highways Contract 2017 – 
updates to be included in Commissioning Director’s 
Report

3 Infrastructure South – including Severn Bridge tolls 
and third river crossing

8 On-Street Parking Review – information on legal 
position and appeal process to be included in 
Commissioning Director’s Report

4 Motion 787 – Pavements 9 Air Pollution – task group to be established to 
consider issues relating to air pollution

5 Advice from Gloucestershire County Council (as 
Lead Local Flood Authority) to local planning 
authorities

P
age 96


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Motion 772: Highway Customer Service Satisfaction Survey
	Highways Customer Satisfaction Survey 2017 results

	5 Commissioning Directors Report
	20170920 ECSC SDir Report ANNEX 5 Bishops Cleeve Library Pilot Summary
	20170920 ECSC SDir Report ANNEX 6 Q1 performance scorecard

	6 Chief Fire Officer Report
	7 Work Plan



